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EXPLANATORY NOTE

On March 1, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), Amalgamated Financial Corp., a Delaware public benefit corporation (the “Company”) acquired all of the
outstanding stock of Amalgamated Bank, a New York state-chartered bank (the “Bank”), in a statutory share exchange transaction (the “Reorganization”)
effected under New York law and in accordance with the terms of a Plan of Acquisition dated September 4, 2020 (the “Agreement”). The Reorganization
and the Agreement were approved by the Bank’s stockholders at a special meeting of the Bank’s stockholders held on January 12, 2021. Pursuant to the
Reorganization, shares of the Bank’s Class A common stock were exchanged for shares of the Company’s common stock on a one-for-one basis. As a
result, the Bank became the sole subsidiary of the Company, the Company became the holding company for the Bank and the stockholders of the Bank
became stockholders of the Company.

Before the Effective Date, the Bank’s Class A common stock was registered under Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”), and the Bank was subject to the information requirements of the Exchange Act and, in accordance with Section 12(i) thereof, filed quarterly reports,
proxy statements and other information with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). As of the Effective Date, pursuant to Rule 12g-3 under
the Exchange Act, the Company is the successor registrant to the Bank, the Company’s common stock is deemed to be registered under Section 12(b) of the
Exchange Act, and the Company has become subject to the information requirements of the Exchange Act and files reports, proxy statements and other
information with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

In this report, unless the context indicates otherwise, references to “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to the Company and the Bank. However, if the discussion
relates to a period before the Effective Date, the terms refer only to the Bank.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Forward-looking statements are not statements of historical fact
and generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, such as “may,” “will,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “could,” “should,” “would,”
“believe,” “project,” “plan,” “goal,” “target,” “potential,” “pro-forma,” “seek,” “contemplate,” “expect,” “estimate,” and “continue,” or the negative thereof
as well as other similar words and expressions of the future. These forward-looking statements include statements related to our plans, objectives,
strategies, projected growth, anticipated future financial performance (including underlying assumptions), and management’s long-term performance goals,
as well as statements relating to the anticipated effects or consequences of various transactions or events on our results of operations and financial condition
and statements about the future performance, operations, products and services of Amalgamated Financial Corp.

Forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict as to timing, extent, likelihood and degree of
occurrence, which could cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in or by such statements. Potential risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, the following:

• our ability to maintain our reputation;

• our ability to carry out our business strategy prudently, effectively and profitably;

• unexpected challenges related to the transition of our executive officers;

• our ability to attract customers based on shared values or mission alignment;

• the impact of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus, or COVID-19, on our business, including the impact of the actions taken by
governmental authorities to try and contain the virus or address the impact of the virus on the United States economy (including, without
limitation, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act, or the CARES Act), and the resulting effect of these items on our
operations, liquidity and capital position, and on the financial condition of our borrowers and other customers;

• impairment of investment securities, goodwill, other intangible assets or deferred tax assets;

• projections on loans, assets, deposits, liabilities, revenues, expenses, net income, capital expenditures, liquidity, dividends, capital structure or
other financial items;
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• inaccuracy of the assumptions and estimates we make in establishing our allowance for loan losses and other estimates, including future
changes in the allowance for loan losses resulting from the future adoption and implementation of the Current Expected Credit Loss
(“CECL”) methodology;

• our policies with respect to asset quality and loan charge-offs, including future changes in the allowance for loan losses resulting from the
anticipated adoption and implementation of CECL;

• the composition of our loan portfolio and the potential deterioration in the financial condition of borrowers resulting in significant increases in
loan losses, provisions for those losses that exceed our current allowance for loan losses and higher loan charge-offs;

• the availability of and access to capital, and our ability to allocate capital prudently, effectively and profitably;

• our ability to pay dividends;

• our ability to achieve organic loan and deposit growth and the composition of such growth;

• our ability to identify and effectively acquire potential acquisition or merger targets, including our ability to be seen as an acquirer of choice
and our ability to obtain regulatory approval for any acquisition or merger and thereafter to successfully integrate any acquisition or merger
target;

• time and effort necessary to resolve nonperforming assets;

• fluctuations in the values of our assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures;

• general economic conditions (both generally and in our markets) may be less favorable than expected, which could result in, among other
things, a deterioration in credit quality, a reduction in demand for credit and a decline in real estate values;

• the general decline in the real estate and lending markets, particularly in our market areas, including the effects of the enactment of or changes
to rent-control and other similar regulations on multi-family housing;

• changes in the demand for our products and services;

• other financial institutions having greater financial resources and being able to develop or acquire products that enable them to compete more
successfully than we can;

• restrictions or conditions imposed by our regulators on our operations or the operations of banks we acquire may make it more difficult for us
to achieve our goals;

• legislative or regulatory changes, including changes in tax laws, accounting standards and compliance requirements, whether of general
applicability or specific to us and our subsidiaries;

• the costs, effects and outcomes of litigation, regulatory proceedings, examinations, investigations, or similar matters, or adverse facts and
developments related thereto;

• competitive pressures among depository and other financial institutions may increase significantly;

• adverse effects of failures by our vendors to provide agreed upon services in the manner and at the cost agreed, particularly our information
technology vendors and those vendors performing a service on our behalf;

• changes in the interest rate environment may reduce margins or the volumes or values of the loans we make or have acquired;

• adverse changes in the bond and equity markets;

• cybersecurity risks, and the vulnerability of our network and online banking portals, and the systems of parties with whom we contract, to
unauthorized access, computer viruses, phishing schemes, spam attacks, human error, natural disasters, power loss and other security breaches
that could adversely affect or disrupt our business and financial performance or reputation;
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• our ability to attract and retain key personnel, including our ability to timely identify a new chief executive officer and chief financial officer
in light of, among other things, competition for experienced employees and executives in the banking industry;

• the possibility of earthquakes, wildfires, and other natural disasters affecting the markets in which we operate;

• war or terrorist activities causing further deterioration in the economy or causing instability in credit markets;

• economic, governmental or other factors may affect the projected population, residential and commercial growth in the markets in which we
operate; and

• descriptions of assumptions underlying or relating to any of the foregoing.

All forward-looking statements are necessarily only estimates of future results, and there can be no assurance that actual results will not differ materially
from expectations, and, therefore, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements, which should be read in conjunction
with the other cautionary statements that are included elsewhere in this report. Additional factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from
those contemplated by any forward-looking statements may be found in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and current
Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC and available at the SEC’s website at https://sec.gov. Further, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the
date on which it is made and we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date
on which the statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, unless required to do so under the federal securities laws.
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Part I
Item 1. – Financial Statements
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
(Dollars in thousands except for per share amounts)

March 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Assets (unaudited)
Cash and due from banks $ 7,387 $ 7,736 
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 497,536 31,033 

Total cash and cash equivalents 504,923 38,769 
Securities:

Available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost of $1,667,925 and $1,513,409, respectively) 1,688,924 1,539,862 
Held-to-maturity (fair value of $530,207 and $502,425, respectively) 531,274 494,449 

Loans held for sale 16,661 11,178 
Loans receivable, net of deferred loan origination costs (fees) 3,259,504 3,488,895 

Allowance for loan losses (36,662) (41,589)
Loans receivable, net 3,222,842 3,447,306 

Resell agreements 152,268 154,779 
Accrued interest and dividends receivable 21,465 23,970 
Premises and equipment, net 12,970 12,977 
Bank-owned life insurance 105,666 105,888 
Right-of-use lease asset 34,453 36,104 
Deferred tax asset, net 26,061 36,079 
Goodwill 12,936 12,936 
Other intangible assets 5,057 5,359 
Equity investments 8,101 11,735 
Other assets 41,625 47,240 
                 Total assets $ 6,385,226 $ 5,978,631 
Liabilities
Deposits $ 5,720,067 $ 5,338,711 
Operating leases 51,057 53,173 
Other liabilities 73,880 50,926 
                 Total liabilities 5,845,004 5,442,810 

Commitments and contingencies — — 

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share (70,000,000 shares authorized; 31,168,783 and 31,049,525 shares
issued and outstanding, respectively) 312 310 
Additional paid-in capital 300,079 300,989 
Retained earnings 226,887 217,213 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes 12,811 17,176 
                 Total Amalgamated Financial Corp. stockholders' equity 540,089 535,688 
Noncontrolling interests 133 133 
                 Total stockholders' equity 540,222 535,821 
                 Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 6,385,226 $ 5,978,631 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (unaudited)
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Consolidated Statements of Income (unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2021 2020
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME
    Loans $ 31,109 $ 35,612 
    Securities 12,170 12,554 
    Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock 48 69 
    Interest-bearing deposits in banks 90 396 
                 Total interest and dividend income 43,417 48,631 
INTEREST EXPENSE
    Deposits 1,573 3,915 
    Borrowed funds — 27 
                 Total interest expense 1,573 3,942 
NET INTEREST INCOME 41,844 44,689 
    Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (3,261) 8,588 
                 Net interest income after provision for loan losses 45,105 36,101 
NON-INTEREST INCOME
    Trust Department fees 3,827 4,085 
    Service charges on deposit accounts 2,178 2,411 
    Bank-owned life insurance 788 384 
    Gain (loss) on sale of investment securities available for sale, net 21 499 
    Gain (loss) on sale of loans, net 707 135 
    Gain (loss) on other real estate owned, net — (23)
    Equity method investments (3,682) — 
    Other 161 1,627 
                 Total non-interest income 4,000 9,118 
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE
    Compensation and employee benefits 18,039 17,458 
    Occupancy and depreciation 3,501 5,506 
    Professional fees 3,661 2,983 
    Data processing 3,005 2,264 
    Office maintenance and depreciation 655 856 
    Amortization of intangible assets 302 342 
    Advertising and promotion 597 667 
    Other 3,033 2,194 
                 Total non-interest expense 32,793 32,270 
Income before income taxes 16,312 12,949 
    Income tax expense (benefit) 4,123 3,404 
                 Net income 12,189 9,545 
Net income attributable to Amalgamated Financial Corp. $ 12,189 $ 9,545 
Earnings per common share - basic $ 0.39 $ 0.30 

Earnings per common share - diluted $ 0.39 $ 0.30 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (unaudited)
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2021 2020

Net income $ 12,189 $ 9,545 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes:
Change in total obligation for postretirement benefits, prior service credit, and other benefits (357) 73 
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale:

Unrealized holding gains (losses) (5,436) (24,368)
Reclassification adjustment for losses (gains) realized in income (18) (499)

Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale (5,454) (24,867)
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax (5,811) (24,794)
Income tax benefit (expense) 1,446 6,902 
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes (4,365) (17,892)
Total comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes $ 7,824 $ (8,347)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (unaudited)
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2021

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Stockholders'

Equity
Noncontrolling

Interest
Total

Equity
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ 310 $ 300,989 $ 217,213 $ 17,176 $ 535,688 $ 133 $ 535,821 
Net income — — 12,189 — 12,189 — 12,189 
Dividends, $0.08 per share — — (2,515) — (2,515) — (2,515)
Repurchase of shares — (420) — — (420) — (420)
Exercise of stock options, net of
repurchases 2 (988) — — (986) — (986)
Restricted stock unit vesting, net of
repurchases — (90) — — (90) — (90)
Stock-based compensation expense — 588 — — 588 — 588 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net
of taxes — — — (4,365) (4,365) — (4,365)
Balance at March 31, 2021 $ 312 $ 300,079 $ 226,887 $ 12,811 $ 540,089 $ 133 $ 540,222 

Three months ended March 31, 2020

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Stockholders'

Equity
Noncontrolling

Interest
Total

Equity
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 315 $ 305,738 $ 181,132 $ 3,225 $ 490,410 $ 134 $ 490,544 
Net income — — 9,545 — 9,545 — 9,545 
Dividends, $0.08 per share — — (2,517) — (2,517) — (2,517)
Repurchase of shares (5) (6,996) — — (7,001) — (7,001)
Exercise of stock options, net of
repurchases — (23) — — (23) — (23)
Stock-based compensation expense — 613 — — 613 — 613 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net
of taxes — — — (17,892) (17,892) — (17,892)
Balance at March 31, 2020 $ 310 $ 299,332 $ 188,160 $ (14,667) $ 473,135 $ 134 $ 473,269 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (unaudited)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Net income $ 12,189 $ 9,545 
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
    Depreciation and amortization 854 1,320 
    Amortization of intangible assets 302 342 
    Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 3,234 (1,156)
    Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (3,261) 8,588 
    Stock-based compensation expense 588 613 
    Net amortization (accretion) on loan fees, costs, premiums, and discounts 684 421 
    Net amortization on securities 751 167 
    OTTI loss (gain) recognized in earnings 3 — 
    Net loss (income) from equity method investments 3,682 — 
    Net loss (gain) on sale of securities available for sale (21) (499)
    Net loss (gain) on sale of loans (707) (135)
    Net loss (gain) on sale of other real estate owned — 23 
    Net loss (gain) on owned property held for sale — (1,428)
    Net (gain) on redemption of bank-owned life insurance (266) — 
    Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 39,037 9,864 
    Originations of loans held for sale (43,777) (9,170)
    Decrease (increase) in cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance (522) (384)
    Decrease (increase) in accrued interest and dividends receivable 2,505 1,685 
    Decrease (increase) in other assets 9,723 1,709 
    Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities (12,856) (3,961)
                      Net cash provided by operating activities 12,142 17,544 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
    Originations and purchases of loans, net of principal repayments 224,323 (85,229)
    Purchase of securities available for sale (212,959) (240,276)
    Purchase of securities held to maturity (58,907) (2,104)
    Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 14,431 27,763 
    Maturities, principal payments and redemptions of securities available for sale 85,482 60,501 
    Maturities, principal payments and redemptions of securities held to maturity 21,372 8,434 
    Decrease (increase) in resell agreements 2,511 — 
    Purchase of equity method investments 220 — 
    Decrease (increase) of FHLBNY stock, net — 3,375 
    Purchases of premises and equipment (847) (844)
    Proceeds from redemption of bank-owned life insurance 1,010 — 
                      Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 76,636 (228,380)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
    Net increase (decrease) in deposits 381,356 435,575 
    Net increase (decrease) in FHLB advances — (75,000)
    Issuance of common stock 2 — 
    Repurchase of shares (420) (7,001)

(1)

(2)
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    Dividends paid (2,484) (2,517)
    Exercise of stock options, net (1,079) (23)
    Restricted stock unit vesting, net 1 — 
                      Net cash provided by financing activities 377,376 351,034 
                      Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 466,154 140,198 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of year 38,769 122,538 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of year $ 504,923 $ 262,736 
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
    Interest paid during the year $ 1,696 $ 4,220 
    Income taxes paid during the year 9,823 136 
Supplemental non-cash investing activities:
    Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities $ 777 $ — 
    Initial recognition of Operating leases liability — — 
    Loans transferred to other real estate owned 2,682 — 
    Purchase of securities available for sale, net not settled 53,573 89,435 

(1) Includes $1.7 million and $2.4 million of right of use asset amortization for the respective periods
(2) Includes $0.4 million and $0.5 million accretion of operating lease liabilities for the respective periods

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (unaudited)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

1.    BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Holding Company Reorganization

On March 1, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), Amalgamated Financial Corp., a Delaware public benefit corporation (the “Company”)
acquired all of the outstanding stock of Amalgamated Bank, a New York state-chartered bank (the “Bank”), in a statutory share
exchange transaction (the “Reorganization”) effected under New York law and in accordance with the terms of a Plan of
Acquisition dated September 4, 2020 (the “Agreement”). The Reorganization and the Agreement were approved by the Bank’s
stockholders at a special meeting of the Bank’s stockholders held on January 12, 2021. Pursuant to the Reorganization, shares of
the Bank’s Class A common stock were exchanged for shares of the Company’s common stock on a one-for-one basis. As a
result, the Bank became the sole subsidiary of the Company, the Company became the holding company for the Bank and the
stockholders of the Bank became stockholders of the Company. Prior to the Effective Date of the Reorganization, the Company conducted no operations
other than obtaining regulatory approval for the Reorganization. Accordingly, there has been no significant financial activity at the parent company level as
of March 31, 2021.

In this discussion, unless the context indicates otherwise, references to “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to the Company and the Bank. However, if the
discussion relates to a period before the Effective Date, the terms refer only to the Bank.

Segment Information

Public companies are required to report certain financial information about significant revenue-producing segments of the business for which such
information is available and utilized by the chief operating decision maker. Substantially all of our operations occur through the Bank and involve the
delivery of loan and deposit products to customers. Management makes operating decisions and assesses performance based on an ongoing review of its
banking operation, which constitutes our only operating segment for financial reporting purposes. We do not consider our trust and investment management
business as a separate segment.

Basis of Accounting and Changes in Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of Amalgamated Financial Corp. (the “Company”) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, or GAAP and predominant practices within the banking industry. The Company uses the accrual basis of accounting for financial
statement purposes.    

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and its majority-owned
subsidiaries and have been prepared in accordance with instructions to Form 10-Q and therefore do not include all information and footnotes necessary for
a fair presentation of financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with GAAP. All significant inter-company transactions and
balances are eliminated in consolidation. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated financial
position and the results of operations for the interim periods presented have been included. A more detailed description of our accounting policies is
included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (the “2020 Annual Report”). There have been no significant changes
to our accounting policies, or the estimates made pursuant to those policies as described in our 2020 Annual Report. These unaudited consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing in the 2020 Annual Report.

Risks and Uncertainties

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is fluid and continues to evolve, adversely affecting many of the Company’s clients. The Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations generally rely upon the ability of the Bank’s borrowers to repay their loans, the value of collateral underlying
the Bank’s secured loans, and demand for loans and other products and services the Bank offers, which are highly dependent on the business environment
in the Bank’s primary markets where it operates and in the United States as a whole. The unprecedented and rapid spread of COVID-19 and its associated
impacts on trade (including supply chains and export levels), travel, employee productivity, unemployment, consumer spending, and other economic
activities has resulted in less economic activity, and significant volatility and disruption in financial markets, and has had an adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition and results of operation. The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic have had, and are expected to continue to have,
possibly materially, an adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. The ultimate extent of the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on our business, financial condition and results of
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

operations is currently uncertain and will depend on various developments and other factors, including the effect of governmental and private sector
initiatives, the effect of the recent rollout of vaccinations for the virus, whether such vaccinations will be effective against any resurgence of the virus,
including any new strain, and the ability for customers and businesses to return to their pre-pandemic routine. In addition, it is reasonably possible that
certain significant estimates made in the Company’s financial statements could be materially and adversely impacted in the near term as a result of these
conditions.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

2.    RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Accounting Standards Adopted in 2020

In June 2016, the FASB amended existing guidance for ASU 2017-04, “Intangibles – Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)”, to simplify the subsequent
measurement of goodwill. The amendment requires an entity to perform its annual, or interim, goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a
reporting unit with its carrying amount and recognizing an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its
fair value, not to exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. The amendments also eliminate the requirement for any reporting unit
with a zero or negative carrying amount to perform a qualitative assessment and, if it fails that qualitative test, to perform Step 2 of the goodwill
impairment test. The amendments became effective for public business entities for annual or interim goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. The
amendments should be applied prospectively. An entity is required to disclose the nature of and reason for the change in accounting principle upon
transition in the first annual period and in the interim period within the first annual period when the entity initially adopts the amendments. As a result of
our acquisition of New Resource Bank (“NRB”) in the latter half of the second quarter of 2018, we elected June 30, 2019 as the beginning date for annual
impairment testing. We adopted ASU 2017-04 during the second quarter of 2020 and performed our annual impairment test. Our estimated fair value was
in excess of the carrying value and the Bank, as a sole reporting unit, was not at risk of failing the quantitative analysis. Adoption did not have an effect on
our operating results or financial condition. Refer to Note 13 - Goodwill and Intangible Assets for further details.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, “Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820)—Disclosure Framework—Changes to the Disclosure Requirements
for Fair Value Measurement”, which improves the effectiveness of fair value measurement disclosures. The amendments modify the disclosure
requirements on fair value measurements in Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement as follows: removes disclosure requirements for the amount and reasons
for transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 assets and liabilities in the fair value hierarchy; modifies disclosure requirements for transfers into and out of
Level 3 assets and liabilities in the fair value hierarchy; adds disclosure requirements for the changes in unrealized gains and losses for the period included
in other comprehensive income for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements and the range and weighted average of significant unobservable inputs used
to develop Level 3 fair value measurements. The amendments in this update became effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2019, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Adoption of ASU 2018-13 did not have a material effect on our operating results or financial condition.

Accounting Standards Effective in 2021 and onward

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, “Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326) – Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments.” ASU 2016-13 significantly changes the impairment model for most financial assets that are measured at amortized cost and certain other
instruments from an incurred loss model to an expected loss model and provides for recording credit losses on available for sale debt securities through an
allowance account. ASU 2016-13 also requires certain incremental disclosures. In October 2019, the FASB voted to extend the adoption date for entities
eligible to be smaller reporting companies, public business entities (PBEs) that are not SEC filers, and entities that are not PBEs from January 1, 2020 to
January 1, 2023. Based on our election as an Emerging Growth Company under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act to use the extended transition
period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards, we currently anticipate a January 1, 2023 adoption date. In preparation, we
have performed work in assessing and enhancing the technology environment and related data needs and availability. Additionally, a Management
Committee comprised of members from multiple departments has been established to monitor our progress towards adoption. As adoption will require the
implementation of significant changes to the existing credit loss estimation model and is dependent on the economic forecast, and given the length of time
before our adoption date, evaluating the overall impact of the ASU on our Consolidated Financial Statements is not yet determinable.

On January 7, 2021, the FASB has issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2021-01, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Scope. The new
guidance amends the scope of ASU 2020-04, Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting, which was aimed at easing the
potential accounting burden expected when global capital markets move away from the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") (the benchmark interest
rate banks use to make short-term loans to each other) and provided temporary, optional expedients and exceptions for applying accounting guidance to
contract modifications and hedging relationships, subject to meeting certain criteria, that reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be
discontinued. As the majority of our securities tied to LIBOR are expected to transition to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate
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("SOFR") or pay off before the transition date and given that we do not have a substantial amount of commercial loans or any derivative transactions tied to
LIBOR, the Adoption of ASU 2021-01 is not expected to have a material impact on our operating results or financial condition.
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3.    ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The Company records unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes, on securities available for sale in other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity. Gains and losses on securities available for sale are reclassified to operations as the gains or losses are
recognized. Other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) losses on debt securities are reflected in earnings as realized losses to the extent the impairment is
related to credit losses. The amount of the impairment related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). The Company also
recognizes as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) the actuarial gains or losses as well as the prior service costs or credits that arise during
the period from post-retirement benefit plans.

Other comprehensive income (loss) components and related income tax effects were as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2021 2020
(In thousands)
Change in obligation for postretirement benefits and for prior service credit $ 54 $ 55 
Change in obligation for other benefits (411) 18 
Change in total obligation for postretirement benefits and for prior service credit and for other benefits $ (357) $ 73 
Income tax effect (43) (21)

Net change in total obligation for postretirement benefits and prior service credit and for other benefits (400) 52 
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on available for sale securities $ (5,436) $ (24,368)
Reclassification adjustment for losses (gains) realized in income (18) (499)
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities (5,454) (24,867)
Income tax effect 1,489 6,923 
Net change in unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities (3,965) (17,944)
Total $ (4,365) $ (17,892)

The following is a summary of the accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) balances, net of income taxes:

Balance as of
January 1,

2021

Current
Period
Change

Income Tax
Effect

Balance as of
March 31, 2021

(In thousands)
Unrealized gains (losses) on benefits plans $ (2,056) $ (357) $ (43) $ (2,456)
Unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities 19,232 (5,454) 1,489 15,267 
Total $ 17,176 $ (5,811) $ 1,446 $ 12,811 
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The following represents the reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Affected Line Item in the Consolidated Statements of Income2021 2020
(In thousands)

Realized gains (losses) on sale of available for sale
securities $ 21 $ 499 

Gain (loss) on sale of investment securities available for sale,
net

Recognized gains (losses) on OTTI securities (3) — Non-Interest Income - other
Income tax expense (benefit) 5 139 Income tax expense (benefit)
Total reclassifications, net of income tax $ 13 $ 360 

Prior service credit on pension plans and other
postretirement benefits $ 7 $ 7 Compensation and employee benefits
Income tax expense (benefit) (2) (2) Income tax expense (benefit)
Total reclassifications, net of income tax $ 5 $ 5 

Total reclassifications, net of income tax $ 18 $ 365 
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4.    INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale and held to maturity as of March 31, 2021 are as follows:

March 31, 2021

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value
(In thousands)
Available for sale:

Mortgage-related:
GSE residential certificates $ 11,312 $ 318 $ — $ 11,630 
GSE CMOs 355,784 11,991 — 367,775 
GSE commercial certificates & CMO 444,463 6,809 (1,717) 449,555 
Non-GSE residential certificates 12,518 118 (25) 12,611 
Non-GSE commercial certificates 62,557 105 (545) 62,117 

886,634 19,341 (2,287) 903,688 
Other debt:

U.S. Treasury 200 3 — 203 
ABS 719,489 4,692 (1,215) 722,966 
Trust preferred 14,628 — (566) 14,062 
Corporate 46,974 1,051 (20) 48,005 

781,291 5,746 (1,801) 785,236 

Total available for sale $ 1,667,925 $ 25,087 $ (4,088) $ 1,688,924 

Held to maturity:
Mortgage-related:

GSE residential certificates $ 456 $ 26 $ — $ 482 
Non GSE commercial certificates 203 — — 203 

659 26 — 685 
Other debt:

PACE Assessments 451,643 — (1,747) 449,896 
Municipal 73,872 1,548 (894) 74,526 
Other 5,100 1 (1) 5,100 

530,615 1,549 (2,642) 529,522 
Total held to maturity $ 531,274 $ 1,575 $ (2,642) $ 530,207 

As of March 31, 2021, available for sale securities with a fair value of $976.9 million were pledged with no held-to-maturity securities being pledged. The
majority of the securities were pledged to the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (“FHLB”) to secure outstanding advances, letters of credit and to
provide additional borrowing potential. In addition, securities were pledged to provide capacity to borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank and to
collateralize municipal deposits.
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The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale and held to maturity as of December 31, 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2020

(In thousands) Amortized Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
Available for sale:

Mortgage-related:
GSE residential certificates $ 12,977 $ 322 $ — $ 13,299 
GSE CMOs 353,783 12,690 (52) 366,421 
GSE commercial certificates & CMO 421,488 11,548 (422) 432,614 
Non-GSE residential certificates 33,120 281 (17) 33,384 
Non-GSE commercial certificates 45,179 112 (323) 44,968 

866,547 24,953 (814) 890,686 

U.S. Treasury 200 3 — 203 
ABS 595,062 4,356 (1,872) 597,546 
Trust preferred 14,627 — (854) 13,773 
Corporate 36,973 683 (2) 37,654 

646,862 5,042 (2,728) 649,176 

Total available for sale 1,513,409 29,995 (3,542) 1,539,862

Held to maturity:
Mortgage-related:

GSE residential certificates $ 611 $ 38 $ — $ 649 
Non GSE commercial certificates 212 15 — 227 

823 53 — 876 

PACE Assessments 421,036 4,870 — 425,906 
Municipal 67,490 3,019 — 70,509 
Other 5,100 34 — 5,134 

493,626 7,923 — 501,549 
Total held to maturity $ 494,449 $ 7,976 $ — $ 502,425 
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The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair value of debt securities available for sale and held to maturity, exclusive of mortgage-backed
securities, by their contractual maturity as of March 31, 2021. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the
right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalty:

Available for Sale Held to Maturity
Amortized

Cost Fair Value
Amortized

Cost Fair Value
(In thousands)
Due within one year $ 200 $ 202 $ 2,000 $ 2,001 
Due after one year through five years 22,740 23,239 3,100 3,099 
Due after five years through ten years 265,240 265,020 9,750 9,817 
Due after ten years 493,111 496,775 515,765 514,605 

$ 781,291 $ 785,236 $ 530,615 $ 529,522 

Proceeds received and gains and losses realized on sales of securities are summarized below:

Three Months Ended,
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(In thousands)

Proceeds $ 14,431 $ 27,763 

Realized gains $ 72 $ 523 
Realized losses (51) (24)
               Net realized gains (losses) $ 21 $ 499 

The Company controls and monitors inherent credit risk in its securities portfolio through diversification, concentration limits, periodic securities reviews,
and by investing a significant portion of the securities portfolio in U.S. Government sponsored entity (“GSE”) obligations. GSEs include the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”), the Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA”), the Government National Mortgage Association
(“GNMA”) and the Small Business Administration (“SBA”). GNMA is a wholly owned U.S. Government corporation whereas FHLMC and FNMA are
private. Mortgage-related securities may include mortgage pass-through certificates, participation certificates and collateralized mortgage obligations
(“CMOs”).
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The following summarizes the fair value and unrealized losses for those available for sale and held to maturity securities as of March 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020, respectively, segregated between securities that have been in an unrealized loss position for less than twelve months and those that
have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for twelve months or longer at the respective dates:

March 31, 2021

Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or Longer Total

(In thousands) Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses
Available for sale:

Mortgage-related:
GSE commercial certificates & CMO 75,592 (1,453) 168,079 (264) 243,671 (1,717)
Non-GSE residential certificates 5,725 (25) — — 5,725 (25)
Non-GSE commercial certificates 17,058 (463) 12,953 (82) 30,011 (545)

Other debt:
ABS 86,648 (389) 182,098 (826) 268,746 (1,215)
Trust preferred — — 14,062 (566) 14,062 (566)

    Corporate 7,980 (20) — — 7,980 (20)
Total available for sale $ 193,003 $ (2,350) $ 377,192 $ (1,738) $ 570,195 $ (4,088)

Held to maturity:
PACE Assessments 449,896 (1,747) — — 449,896 (1,747)
Municipal 27,533 (894) — — 27,533 (894)
Other 3,099 (1) — — 3,099 (1)

Total held to maturity $ 480,528 $ (2,642) $ — $ — $ 480,528 $ (2,642)

December 31, 2020
Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or Longer Total

(In thousands) Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses
Mortgage-related:

GSE CMOs 31,106 (35) 12,910 (17) 44,016 (52)
GSE commercial certificates 116,667 (287) 75,126 (135) 191,793 (422)
Non-GSE residential certificates 2,138 (9) 3,077 (8) 5,215 (17)
Non-GSE commercial certificates 47 — 29,207 (323) 29,254 (323)

Other debt:
ABS 3,010 (1) 298,410 (1,871) 301,420 (1,872)
Trust preferred — — 13,773 (854) 13,773 (854)
    Corporate 6,998 (2) — — 6,998 (2)

$ 159,966 $ (334) $ 432,503 $ (3,208) $ 592,469 $ (3,542)

The temporary impairment of fixed income securities (mortgage-related securities, U.S. Treasury and GSE securities, trust preferred securities and
corporate debt) is primarily attributable to changes in overall market interest rates and/or changes in credit spreads since the investments were acquired. In
general, as market interest rates rise and/or credit spreads widen, the fair value of fixed rate securities will decrease, as market interest rates fall and/or
credit spreads tighten, the fair value of fixed rate securities will increase. Management considers that the temporary impairment of the Company’s
investments in trust preferred securities (“TruPs”) as of March 31, 2021 is primarily due to a widening of credit spreads since the time these investments
were acquired, as
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well as market uncertainty for this class of investments. As of March 31, 2021, temporarily impaired TruPs consist of direct investments in the TruPs of
two large financial institutions. As of March 31, 2021, the amortized cost and fair value of the Company’s investment in these TruPs was $14.6 million and
$14.1 million, respectively. All of the TruPs were rated investment grade by not less than three nationally recognized statistical rating organization’s
(“NRSROs”). All of the issues are current as to their dividend payments and management is not aware of a decision of any trust preferred issuer to exercise
its option to defer dividend payments.

As of March 31, 2021, excluding GSE and U.S. Treasury securities and TruPs, discussed above, temporarily impaired securities totaled $795.6 million with
an unrealized loss of $4.5 million. With the exception of $451.6 million of PACE bonds which were not rated, the remaining securities were rated
investment grade by at least one NRSRO with no ratings below investment grade. All issues were current as to their interest payments. Management
considers that the temporary impairment of these investments as of March 31, 2021 is primarily due to an increase in market spreads since the time these
investments were acquired.

With respect to the Company’s security investments that are temporarily impaired as of March 31, 2021, management does not intend to sell these
investments and does not believe it will be necessary to do so before anticipated recovery. The Company expects to collect all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of these investments. Therefore, the Company does not consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at March 31, 2021.
None of these positions or other securities held in the portfolio or sold during the year were purchased with the intent of selling them or would otherwise be
classified as trading securities under ASC No. 320, Investments – Debt Securities.

During the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company recorded an OTTI loss of $2,693, compared to no OTTI loss for the same period in 2020.

Events which may cause material declines in the fair value of debt investments may include, but are not limited to, deterioration of credit metrics, higher
incidences of default, worsening liquidity, worsening global or domestic economic conditions or adverse regulatory action. Management does not believe
that there are any cases of unrecorded OTTI as of March 31, 2021; however, it is possible that the Company may recognize OTTI in future periods.

17



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

5.    LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET

Loans receivable are summarized as follows:

March 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

(In thousands)
Commercial and industrial $ 612,581 $ 677,192 
Multifamily 882,231 947,177 
Commercial real estate 364,308 372,736 
Construction and land development 50,267 56,087 
   Total commercial portfolio 1,909,387 2,053,192 
Residential real estate lending 1,137,851 1,238,697 
Consumer and other 206,451 190,676 
   Total retail portfolio 1,344,302 1,429,373 

Total loans receivable 3,253,689 3,482,565 
Net deferred loan origination costs (fees) 5,815 6,330 

Total loans receivable, net of deferred loan origination costs (fees) 3,259,504 3,488,895 
Allowance for loan losses (36,662) (41,589)

Total loans receivable, net $ 3,222,842 $ 3,447,306 

The following table presents information regarding the quality of the Company’s loans as of March 31, 2021:

30-89 Days
Past Due

Non-
Accrual

90 Days or 
More

Delinquent
and Still
Accruing
Interest

Total Past
Due

Current
and Not

Accruing
Interest Current

Total Loans
Receivable

(In thousands)
Commercial and industrial $ 5,971 $ 12,347 $ — $ 18,318 $ — $ 594,263 $ 612,581 
Multifamily — 7,660 — 7,660 — 874,571 882,231 
Commercial real estate 13,501 4,133 — 17,634 — 346,674 364,308 
Construction and land development — 8,605 2,424 11,029 — 39,238 50,267 

Total commercial portfolio 19,472 32,745 2,424 54,641 — 1,854,746 1,909,387 
Residential real estate lending 12,780 24,300 — 37,080 — 1,100,771 1,137,851 
Consumer and other 1,193 857 — 2,050 — 204,401 206,451 
     Total retail portfolio 13,973 25,157 — 39,130 — 1,305,172 1,344,302 

$ 33,445 $ 57,902 $ 2,424 $ 93,771 $ — $ 3,159,918 $ 3,253,689 
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The following table presents information regarding the quality of the Company’s loans as of December 31, 2020:

30-89 Days
Past Due

Non-
Accrual

90 Days or
More

Delinquent
and Still
Accruing
Interest

Total Past
Due

Current
and Not

Accruing
Interest Current

Total Loans
Receivable

(In thousands)
Commercial and industrial $ — $ 12,444 $ 1,404 $ 13,848 $ — $ 663,344 $ 677,192 
Multifamily 3,590 9,575 — 13,165 — 934,012 947,177 
Commercial real estate 10,574 3,433 — 14,007 — 358,729 372,736 
Construction and land development 9,974 11,184 — 21,158 — 34,929 56,087 

     Total commercial portfolio 24,138 36,636 1,404 62,178 — 1,991,014 2,053,192 
Residential real estate lending 19,526 23,280 — 42,806 376 1,195,515 1,238,697 
Consumer and other 1,015 632 — 1,647 — 189,029 190,676 
     Total retail portfolio 20,541 23,912 — 44,453 376 1,384,544 1,429,373 

$ 44,679 $ 60,548 $ 1,404 $ 106,631 $ 376 $ 3,375,558 $ 3,482,565 

In general, a modification or restructuring of a loan constitutes a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) if the Company grants a concession to a borrower
experiencing financial difficulty. Loans modified as TDRs are placed on non-accrual status until the Company determines that future collection of principal
and interest is reasonably assured, which generally requires that the borrower demonstrate performance according to the restructured terms for a period of
at least six months. The Company’s TDRs primarily involve rate reductions, forbearance of arrears or extension of maturity. TDRs are included in total
impaired loans as of the respective date. For a loan modification to be considered a TDR in accordance with ASC 310-40, both of the following conditions
must be met: the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty, and the creditor has granted a concession (except for an “insignificant delay in payment”,
defined as six months or less).

On March 22, 2020, federal banking regulators issued an interagency statement that included guidance on their approach for the accounting of loan
modifications in light of the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The guidance interprets current accounting standards and indicates that a lender
can conclude that a borrower is not experiencing financial difficulty if short-term modifications are made in response to COVID-19, such as payment
deferrals, fee waivers, extensions of repayment terms, or other delays in payment that are insignificant related to the loans in which the borrower is less
than 30 days past due on its contractual payments at the time a modification program is implemented. The agencies confirmed in working with the staff of
the FASB that short-term modifications made on a good faith basis in response to COVID-19 to borrowers who were current prior to any relief are not
TDRs.

On March 27, 2020, the CARES Act was enacted to help the nation’s economy recover from the COVID-19 pandemic. The CARES Act provides $2.2
trillion of economy-wide financial stimulus in the form of financial aid to individuals, businesses, nonprofit entities, states, and municipalities. Under
Section 4022 of the CARES Act, a borrower with a federally backed mortgage loan that is experiencing a financial hardship due to COVID-19 may request
a forbearance (i.e., payment deferral), regardless of delinquency status, for up to 180 days, which may be extended for an additional 180 days at the
borrower’s request. Before this relief was set to expire on December 31, 2020, the Consolidated Appropriations Act was signed into law, which extended
the relief granted under the CARES act to the earlier of January 1, 2022 or 60 days after the national emergency is terminated. During this relief period, no
fees, penalties, or interest beyond those scheduled or calculated as if the borrower had made all contractual payments on time and in full will accrue. In
addition, Section 4013 of the CARES Act provides temporary relief from the accounting and reporting requirements for TDRs regarding certain loan
modifications related to COVID-19. Specifically, the CARES Act provides that a financial institution may elect to suspend the requirements under GAAP
for certain loan modifications that would otherwise be categorized as a TDR. Modifications that qualify for this exception include a forbearance
arrangement, an interest rate modification, a repayment plan, or any other similar arrangement that defers or delays the payment of principal or interest, that
occurs for a loan that was not more than 30 days past due as of December 31, 2019.
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As of March 31, 2021, the Company had $8.5 million in loans on payment deferral and still accruing interest, of which $4.9 million were residential loans
and the remaining $3.6 million were commercial or consumer loans.

The following table presents information regarding the Company’s TDRs as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

(In thousands) Accruing
Non-

Accrual Total Accruing
Non-

Accrual Total
Commercial and industrial $ 1,628 $ 12,019 $ 13,647 $ 1,648 $ 12,116 $ 13,764 
Commercial real estate — 3,367 3,367 — 3,433 3,433 
Construction and land development — — — — 2,682 2,682 
Residential real estate lending 16,028 5,192 21,220 17,905 2,654 20,559 

$ 17,656 $ 20,578 $ 38,234 $ 19,553 $ 20,885 $ 40,438 

The following tables summarize the Company’s loan portfolio by credit quality indicator as of March 31, 2021:

(In thousands) Pass Special Mention Substandard Doubtful Total
Commercial and industrial $ 566,421 $ 17,622 $ 28,079 $ 459 $ 612,581 
Multifamily 742,746 108,016 28,296 3,173 882,231 
Commercial real estate 257,178 32,878 74,252 — 364,308 
Construction and land development 33,971 7,691 8,605 — 50,267 
Residential real estate lending 1,113,551 — 24,300 — 1,137,851 
Consumer and other 205,594 — 857 — 206,451 
Total loans $ 2,919,461 $ 166,207 $ 164,389 $ 3,632 $ 3,253,689 

The following tables summarize the Company’s loan portfolio by credit quality indicator as of December 31, 2020:

(In thousands) Pass Special Mention Substandard Doubtful Total
Commercial and industrial $ 627,553 $ 16,407 $ 32,770 $ 462 $ 677,192 
Multifamily 775,605 138,090 33,482 — 947,177 
Commercial real estate 276,712 41,420 54,604 — 372,736 
Construction and land development 28,967 15,936 11,184 — 56,087 
Residential real estate lending 1,215,417 — 23,280 — 1,238,697 
Consumer and other 190,044 — 632 — 190,676 
Total loans $ 3,114,298 $ 211,853 $ 155,952 $ 462 $ 3,482,565 

The above classifications follow regulatory guidelines and can be generally described as follows:

• pass loans are of satisfactory quality;

• special mention loans have a potential weakness or risk that may result in the deterioration of future repayment;

• substandard loans are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged (these loans
have a well-defined weakness, and there is a distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss); and

• doubtful loans, based on existing circumstances, have weaknesses that make collection or liquidation in full highly questionable and improbable.

In addition, residential loans are classified utilizing an inter-agency methodology that incorporates the extent of delinquency. Assigned risk rating grades
are continuously updated as new information is obtained.
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The following table provides information regarding the methods used to evaluate the Company’s loans for impairment by portfolio, and the Company’s
allowance by portfolio based upon the method of evaluating loan impairment as of March 31, 2021:

(In thousands)
Commercial

and Industrial Multifamily
Commercial
Real Estate

Construction and
Land

Development

Residential
Real Estate

Lending
Consumer
and Other Total

Loans:
Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 14,832 $ 7,660 $ 4,133 $ 8,605 $ 40,328 $ — $ 75,558 
Collectively evaluated for
impairment 597,749 874,571 360,175 41,662 1,097,523 206,451 3,178,131 

Total loans $ 612,581 $ 882,231 $ 364,308 $ 50,267 $ 1,137,851 $ 206,451 $ 3,253,689 

Allowance for loan losses:
Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 3,574 $ 250 $ — $ — $ 1,120 $ — $ 4,944 
Collectively evaluated for
impairment 5,118 5,875 8,464 1,391 9,627 1,243 31,718 

Total allowance for loan losses $ 8,692 $ 6,125 $ 8,464 $ 1,391 $ 10,747 $ 1,243 $ 36,662 

The following table provides information regarding the methods used to evaluate the Company’s loans for impairment by portfolio, and the Company’s
allowance by portfolio based upon the method of evaluating loan impairment as of December 31, 2020:

(In thousands)
Commercial

and Industrial Multifamily
Commercial
Real Estate

Construction and
Land

Development

Residential
Real Estate

Lending
Consumer
and Other Total

Loans:
Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 14,706 $ 9,575 $ 3,433 $ 11,184 $ 41,579 $ — $ 80,477 
Collectively evaluated for
impairment 662,486 937,602 369,303 44,903 1,197,118 190,676 3,402,088 

Total loans $ 677,192 $ 947,177 $ 372,736 $ 56,087 $ 1,238,697 $ 190,676 $ 3,482,565 

Allowance for loan losses:
Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 3,118 $ 1,933 $ — $ — $ 1,187 $ — $ 6,238 
Collectively evaluated for
impairment 5,947 8,391 6,213 2,077 11,143 1,580 35,351 

Total allowance for loan losses $ 9,065 $ 10,324 $ 6,213 $ 2,077 $ 12,330 $ 1,580 $ 41,589 

21



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

The activities in the allowance by portfolio for the three months ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

(In thousands)
Commercial

and Industrial Multifamily
Commercial
Real Estate

Construction
and Land

Development

Residential
Real Estate

Lending
Consumer and

Other Total
Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning balance $ 9,065 $ 10,324 $ 6,213 $ 2,077 $ 12,330 $ 1,580 $ 41,589 
Provision for (recovery of) loan
losses (577) (2,291) 2,251 (687) (1,937) (20) (3,261)
Charge-offs — (1,908) — — (141) (340) (2,389)
Recoveries 204 — — 1 495 23 723 
Ending Balance $ 8,692 $ 6,125 $ 8,464 $ 1,391 $ 10,747 $ 1,243 $ 36,662 

The activities in the allowance by portfolio for the three months ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:

(In thousands)
Commercial

and Industrial Multifamily
Commercial
Real Estate

Construction
and Land

Development

Residential
Real Estate

Lending
Consumer and

Other Total
Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning balance $ 11,126 $ 5,210 $ 2,492 $ 808 $ 14,149 $ 62 $ 33,847 
Provision for (recovery of) loan
losses 3,803 676 244 932 1,093 1,840 8,588 
Charge-offs — — — — (24) (304) (328)
Recoveries 1 — — — 212 28 241 
Ending Balance $ 14,930 $ 5,886 $ 2,736 $ 1,740 $ 15,430 $ 1,626 $ 42,348 

The following is additional information regarding the Company’s individually impaired loans and the allowance related to such loans as of March 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020:

March 31, 2021

Recorded
Investment

Average
Recorded

Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

(In thousands)
Loans without a related allowance:
    Residential real estate lending $ 19,007 $ 19,916 $ 22,291 $ — 
    Construction and land development 8,605 9,895 8,605 — 
    Commercial real estate 4,133 3,783 4,794 — 

31,745 33,594 35,690 — 
Loans with a related allowance:
    Residential real estate lending 21,321 21,037 26,689 1,120 
    Multifamily 7,660 8,618 9,585 250 
    Commercial and industrial 14,832 14,769 31,635 3,574 

43,813 44,424 67,909 4,944 
Total individually impaired loans:
    Residential real estate lending 40,328 40,953 48,980 1,120 
    Multifamily 7,660 8,618 9,585 250 
    Construction and land development 8,605 9,895 8,605 — 
    Commercial real estate 4,133 3,783 4,794 — 
    Commercial and industrial 14,832 14,769 31,635 3,574 

$ 75,558 $ 78,018 $ 103,599 $ 4,944 
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December 31, 2020

(In thousands)
Recorded

Investment

Average
Recorded

Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

Loans without a related allowance:
    Residential real estate lending $ 20,824 $ 12,660 $ 20,898 $ — 
    Construction and land development 11,184 7,418 12,204 — 
    Commercial real estate 3,433 6,120 4,023 — 

35,441 26,198 37,125 — 
Loans with a related allowance:

    Residential real estate lending 20,755 22,151 24,680 1,187 
    Multifamily 9,575 4,788 9,589 1,933 
    Commercial and industrial 14,706 19,788 27,210 3,118 

45,036 46,727 61,479 6,238 
Total individually impaired loans:

    Residential real estate lending 41,579 34,811 45,578 1,187 
    Multifamily 9,575 4,788 9,589 1,933 
    Construction and land development 11,184 7,418 12,204 — 
    Commercial real estate 3,433 6,120 4,023 — 
    Commercial and industrial 14,706 19,788 27,210 3,118 

$ 80,477 $ 72,925 $ 98,604 $ 6,238 

As of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, mortgage loans with an unpaid principal balance of $1.1 billion and $1.2 billion respectively, are pledged to
the FHLBNY to secure outstanding advances and letters of credit.

There were no related party loans outstanding as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.
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6.    DEPOSITS

Deposits are summarized as follows:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Amount
Weighted Average

Rate Amount
Weighted Average

Rate
(In thousands)
Non-interest bearing demand deposit accounts $ 2,819,627 0.00 % $ 2,603,274 0.00 %
NOW accounts 206,145 0.07 % 205,653 0.06 %
Money market deposit accounts 2,067,886 0.10 % 1,914,391 0.13 %
Savings accounts 361,731 0.11 % 343,368 0.12 %
Time deposits 264,678 0.39 % 272,025 0.86 %

$ 5,720,067 0.06 % $ 5,338,711 0.10 %

The scheduled maturities of time deposits as of March 31, 2021 are as follows:

(In thousands)
2022 $ 181,068 
2023 54,500 
2024 12,524 
2025 11,079 
2026 4,248 
Thereafter 1,259 

$ 264,678 

Time deposits of $250,000 or more totaled $39.2 million as of March 31, 2021 and $31.2 million as of December 31, 2020.

From time to time the Bank will issue time deposits through the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (“CDARS”) for the purpose of providing
FDIC insurance to bank customers with balances in excess of FDIC insurance limits. CDARS deposits totaled approximately $95.9 million and $123.8
million as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, and are included in Time deposits above.

Our total deposits included deposits from Workers United and its related entities in the amounts of $72.3 million as of March 31, 2021 and $95.8 million as
of December 31, 2020.

Included in total deposits are state and municipal deposits totaling $76.5 million and $15.2 million as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively. Such deposits are secured by letters of credit issued by the FHLB or by securities pledged with the FHLB.
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7.    BORROWED FUNDS

There were no borrowed funds for the year ended March 31, 2021 or December 31, 2020.

FHLB advances are collateralized by the FHLB stock owned by the Bank plus a pledge of other eligible assets comprised of securities and mortgage loans.
Assets are pledged to collateral capacity. As of March 31, 2021, the value of the other eligible assets had an estimated market value net of haircut totaling
$1.5 billion (comprised of securities of $681.6 million and mortgage loans of $830.6 million). The fair value of assets pledged to the FHLB is required to
be not less than 110% of the outstanding advances.

The Company has no categories of borrowed funds as of March 31, 2021.
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March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

8.    EARNINGS PER SHARE

Under the two-class method, earnings available to common stockholders for the period are allocated between common stockholders and participating
securities according to participation rights in undistributed earnings. Our time-based and performance based restricted stock units are not considered
participating securities as they do not receive dividend distributions until satisfaction of the related vesting requirements.

The factors used in the earnings per share computation follow:

Three Months 
Ended March 31,

2021 2020
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Net income attributable to Amalgamated Financial Corp. $ 12,189 $ 9,545 
Dividends paid on preferred stock — — 
Income attributable to common stock $ 12,189 $ 9,545 
Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic 31,082 31,411 
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.39 $ 0.30 

Income attributable to common stock $ 12,189 $ 9,545 
Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic 31,082 31,411 
Incremental shares from assumed conversion of options and RSUs 442 395 
Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted 31,524 31,806 
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.39 $ 0.30 
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9.    EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Long Term Incentive Plans

Stock Options:

The Company does not currently maintain an active stock option plan that is available for issuing new options. As of January 1, 2021, all options are fully
vested and the Company will not incur any further expense related to options.
A summary of the status of the Company’s options as of March 31, 2021 follows:

Number of
Options

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term
Intrinsic Value

(in thousands)

Outstanding, December 31, 2020 1,978,560 $ 13.03 4.4 years
Granted — — —
Forfeited/ Expired — — —
Exercised (643,780) 12.81 —
Outstanding, March 31, 2021 1,334,780 13.14 5.5 years $ 4,608 
Vested and Exercisable, March 31, 2021 1,334,780 $ 13.14 5.5 years $ 4,608 

The range of exercise prices is $11.00 to $14.65 per share.

As noted above, there was no compensation cost attributable to the options for the first quarter of 2021 and $0.2 million for the three months ended March
31, 2020, which is recorded within the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Restricted Stock Units:

The Amalgamated Financial Corp. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Equity Plan”) provides for the grant of stock-based incentive awards to employees and
directors of the Company. The number of shares of common stock of the Company available for stock-based awards in the Equity Plan is 1,250,000 of
which 711,278 shares were available for issuance as of March 31, 2021.

During the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company granted 93,936 RSUs to employees under the Equity Plan and reserved 117,440 shares for
issuance upon vesting assuming the Company’s employees achieve the maximum share payout.

Of the 93,936 RSUs granted to employees, 46,929 RSUs time-vest ratably over three years and were granted at a fair value of $15.00 per share and 47,007
RSUs were performance-based and are more fully described below:

• The Company granted 23,464 performance-based RSUs at a fair value of $15.00 per share which vest subject to the achievement of the
Company’s corporate goal for the three-year period from December 31, 2020 to December 31, 2023. The Company's corporate goal is
based on achieving a target increase in Tangible Book Value, adjusted for certain factors. The minimum and maximum awards that are
achievable are 0 and 35,196 shares, respectively.

• The Company granted 23,543 market-based RSUs at a fair value of $14.95 per share which vest subject to the Bank’s relative total
shareholder return compared to a group of peer banks over a three-year period from February 3, 2021 to February 2, 2024. The minimum
and maximum awards that are achievable are 0 and 35,315 shares, respectively.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s employee RSUs as of March 31, 2021 follows:

Shares
Grant Date Fair

Value
Unvested, December 31, 2020 290,637 $ 15.99 
Awarded 93,936 14.99 
Vested (23,207) 14.45 

Unvested, March 31, 2021 361,366 $ 15.83 

Of the 361,366 unvested RSUs on March 31, 2021, the minimum units that will vest, solely due to a service test, are 229,685.
The maximum units that will vest, assuming the highest payout on performance and market-based units, are 427,206.

Compensation expense attributable to the employee RSUs was $0.6 million and $0.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. As of March 31, 2021, there was $3.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the non-vested RSUs granted to employees.
This expense may increase or decrease depending on the expected number of performance-based shares to be issued. This expense is expected to be
recognized over 2.1 years.

During the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company did not grant RSUs to directors under the Equity Plan. The Company recorded an expense of
$0.1 million and $0.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. As of March 31, 2021, there was no unrecognized cost
related to the non-vested RSUs granted to directors.
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10.     FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. Assumptions are developed based on prioritizing information within a fair value hierarchy that gives the highest priority to quoted
prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable data. A description of the disclosure hierarchy and the types of financial instruments
recorded at fair value that management believes would generally qualify for each category are as follows:

Level 1 - Valuations are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Accordingly, valuation of these assets and
liabilities does not entail a significant degree of judgment. Examples include most U.S. Government securities and exchange-traded equity
securities.

Level 2 - Valuations are based on either quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or significant inputs to the methodology that
are observable, either directly or indirectly. Financial instruments in this level would generally include mortgage-related securities and other debt
issued by GSEs, non-GSE mortgage-related securities, corporate debt, certain redeemable fund investments and certain trust preferred securities.

Level 3 - Valuations are based on inputs to the methodology that are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. These inputs
reflect management’s own judgments about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets and liabilities.

The following summarizes those financial instruments measured at fair value in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition categorized by the
relevant class of investment and level of the fair value hierarchy:

March 31, 2021
(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Available for sale securities:

Mortgage-related:
GSE residential certificates $ — $ 11,630 $ — $ 11,630 
GSE CMOs — 367,775 — 367,775 
GSE commercial certificates & CMO — 449,555 — 449,555 
Non-GSE residential certificates — 12,611 — 12,611 
Non-GSE commercial certificates — 62,117 — 62,117 

Other debt:
U.S. Treasury 203 — — 203 
ABS — 722,966 — 722,966 
Trust preferred — 14,062 — 14,062 
Corporate — 48,005 — 48,005 
Total assets carried at fair value $ 203 $ 1,688,721 $ — $ 1,688,924 
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December 31, 2020
(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Available for sale securities:

Mortgage-related:
GSE residential certificates $ — $ 13,299 $ — $ 13,299 
GSE CMOs — 366,421 — 366,421 
GSE commercial certificates & CMO — 432,614 — 432,614 
Non-GSE residential certificates — 33,384 — 33,384 
Non-GSE commercial certificates — 44,968 — 44,968 

U.S. Treasury 203 — — 203 
ABS — 597,546 — 597,546 
Trust preferred — 13,773 — 13,773 
Corporate — 37,654 — 37,654 
Total assets carried at fair value $ 203 $ 1,539,659 $ — $ 1,539,862 

The following tables summarize assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis:

March 31, 2021

(In thousands) Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Estimated Fair

Value
Fair Value Measurements:

Impaired loans $ 70,614 $ — $ — $ 70,614 $ 70,614 
Other real estate owned 2,989 — — 3,017 3,017 

$ 73,603 $ — $ — $ 73,631 $ 73,631 

December 31, 2020

(In thousands) Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Estimated Fair

Value
Fair Value Measurements:

Impaired loans $ 67,433 $ — $ — $ 67,433 $ 67,433 
Other real estate owned 307 — — 303 303 

$ 67,740 $ — $ — $ 67,736 $ 67,736 
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The following table summarizes the financial statement basis and estimated fair values for significant categories of financial instruments:

March 31, 2021

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Estimated Fair

Value
(In thousands)
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 504,923 $ 504,923 $ — $ — $ 504,923 
Available for sale securities 1,688,924 203 1,688,721 — 1,688,924 
Held to maturity securities 531,274 — 80,311 449,896 530,207 
Loans held for sale 16,661 — — 16,661 16,661
Loans receivable, net 3,222,842 — — 3,297,624 3,297,624 
Resell agreements 152,268 — — 152,268 152,268 
Accrued interest and dividends receivable 21,465 — 21,465 — 21,465

Financial liabilities:
Deposits payable on demand 5,455,389 — 5,455,389 — 5,455,389 
Time deposits 264,678 — 264,981 — 264,981 
Accrued interest payable 263 — 263 — 263 

December 31, 2020

(In thousands)
Carrying

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Estimated
Fair Value

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,769 $ 38,769 $ — $ — $ 38,769 
Available for sale securities 1,513,409 203 1,539,659 — 1,539,862 
Held to maturity securities 494,449 — 76,519 425,906 502,425 
Loans held for sale 11,178 — — 11,178 11,178 
Loans receivable, net 3,447,306 — — 3,566,742 3,566,742 
Resell agreements 154,779 — — 154,779 154,779 
Accrued interest and dividends receivable 23,970 — 23,970 — 23,970 

Financial liabilities:
Deposits payable on demand 5,066,687 — 5,066,687 — 5,066,687 
Time deposits 272,025 — 272,451 — 272,451 
Accrued interest payable 386 — 386 — 386 
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11.     COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND OFF BALANCE SHEET RISK

Credit Commitments

The Company is party to various credit related financial instruments with off balance sheet risk. The Company, in the normal course of business, issues
such financial instruments in order to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial condition.

The following financial instruments were outstanding whose contract amounts represent credit risk as of the related periods:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
(In thousands)
Commitments to extend credit $ 593,600 $ 455,541 
Standby letters of credit 16,018 17,910 
Total $ 609,618 $ 473,451 

Commitments to extend credit are contracts to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. These
commitments have fixed expiration dates and other termination clauses and generally require the payment of nonrefundable fees. Since a portion of the
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the contractual principal amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the contractual amount of these instruments. These instruments represent ultimate
exposure to credit risk only to the extent they are subsequently drawn upon by customers.

Standby letters of credit are conditional lending commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the financial performance of a customer to a third party.
The credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The balance
sheet carrying value of standby letters of credit approximates any nonrefundable fees received but not yet recorded as income. The Company considers this
carrying value, which is not material, to approximate the estimated fair value of these financial instruments.

The Company reserves for the credit risk inherent in off balance sheet credit commitments. This reserve, which is included in other liabilities, amounted to
approximately $1.2 million as of March 31, 2021 and $1.2 million as of December 31, 2020.

Investment Obligations

The Bank is party to agreements with Pace Funding Group LLC, or PFG, for the purchase of up to $300 million of property assessed clean energy, or
PACE, assessment securities by the fourth quarter of 2021. Additionally, the Bank has an additional obligation up to $25 million for other PACE related
purchases. These investments are to be held in the Company's held-to-maturity investment portfolio. As of March 31, 2021, we had fulfilled $214.5 million
of these obligations. As of December 31, 2020, the Bank had fulfilled $165.4 million of our obligation. The PACE assessments have equal-lien priority
with property taxes and generally rank senior to first lien mortgages.
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12.    LEASES

The Bank as a lessee has operating leases primarily consisting of real estate arrangements where the Company operates its headquarters, branches and
business production offices. All leases identified as in scope are accounted for as operating leases as of March 31, 2021. These leases are typically long-
term leases and generally are not complicated arrangements or structures. Several of the leases contain renewal options at a rate comparable to the fair
market value based on comparable analysis to similar properties in the Bank’s geographies.

Real estate operating leases are presented as a Right-of-use (“ROU”) asset and a related Operating lease liability on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition. The ROU asset represents the Company’s right to use the underlying asset for the lease term and the lease liabilities represent the
obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. The Company applied its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) as the discount rate to the
remaining lease payments to derive a present value calculation for initial measurement of the lease liability. The IBR reflects the interest rate the Company
would have to pay to borrow on a collateralized basis over a similar term for an amount equal to the lease payments. Lease expense is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The following table summarizes our lease cost and other operating lease information:

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2021

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2020

(In thousands)
Operating lease cost $ 2,237 $ 3,488 

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of Operating leases liability $ 2,514 $ 2,680 
Weighted average remaining lease term on operating leases (in years) 5.5 6.3
Weighted average discount rate used for operating leases liability 3.27 % 3.25 %

Note: Sublease income and variable income or expense considered immaterial

The following table presents the remaining commitments for operating lease payments for the next five years and thereafter, as well as a reconciliation to
the discounted Operating leases liability recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of March 31, 2021:

(In thousands)
As of March 31, 2021
2021 remaining $ 7,293 
2022 9,931 
2023 9,818 
2024 9,828 
2025 9,851 
Thereafter 8,912 
Total undiscounted operating lease payments 55,633 
Less: present value adjustment 4,576 
Total Operating leases liability $ 51,057 

33



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

13.     GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

In accordance with GAAP, the Bank performs an annual test as of June 30 to identify potential impairment of goodwill, or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate a potential impairment may exist. If the carrying amount of the Bank, as a sole reporting unit, including goodwill, exceeds its fair
value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess up to the amount of the recorded goodwill.

The fair value of the Company was determined by using a combination of a market approach and an income approach under the framework established for
measuring fair value under ASC 820. Under both approaches the estimated fair value of the Company was in excess of the carrying value and the Bank, as
a sole reporting unit, was not at risk of failing the quantitative analysis. The fair value is based upon market data as of June 30, 2020 and estimates and
assumptions that the Company believes are most appropriate for the analysis. However, changes in certain assumptions used in the Company’s calculations
could result in significant differences in the results of the impairment test. Should market conditions or management’s assumptions change significantly in
the future, an impairment to goodwill is possible. As of March 31, 2021, there were no changes to the Company's annual impairment test conclusion.

At March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill was $12.9 million.

Intangible Assets

The following table reflects the estimated amortization expense, comprised entirely by the Bank’s core deposit intangible asset, for the next five years and
thereafter:

(In thousands)
2021 remaining $ 905 
2022 1,047 
2023 888 
2024 730 
2025 574 
Thereafter 913 
Total $ 5,057 

Accumulated amortization of the core deposit intangible was $4.0 million as of March 31, 2021.
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14.     VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

Tax Credit Investments

The Company makes investments in unconsolidated entities that construct, own and operate solar generation facilities. An unrelated third party is the
managing member and has control over the significant activities of the VIE. The Company generates a return through the receipt of tax credits allocated to
the projects, as well as operational distributions. The primary risk of loss is generally mitigated by policies requiring that the project qualify for the
expected tax credits prior to the Company making its investment. Any loans to the VIE are secured. As of March 31, 2021, the Bank's maximum exposure
to loss is $15.3 million.

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
(In thousands)
Tax credit investments included in equity investments $ 3,167 $ 6,735 
Unfunded tax credit commitments included in other liabilities — — 
Loans and letters of credit commitments 12,096 11,097 
Funded portion of loans and letters of credit commitments 12,096 11,097 

The following table summarizes the tax benefits conveyed by the Company’s solar generation VIE investments:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2021 2020
(In thousands)
Tax credits and other tax benefits recognized $ 343 — 
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Item 2.      Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Holding Company Reorganization

Amalgamated Financial Corp., a Delaware public benefit corporation, was formed on August 25, 2020 to serve as the holding company for Amalgamated
Bank and is a bank holding company registered with the Federal Reserve. On March 1, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), the Company acquired all of the
outstanding stock of Amalgamated Bank, a New York state-chartered commercial bank in a statutory share exchange transaction (the “Reorganization”)
effected under New York law and in accordance with the terms of a Plan of Acquisition dated September 4, 2020 (the “Agreement”). The Reorganization
and the Agreement were approved by the Bank’s stockholders at a special meeting held on January 12, 2021. Pursuant to the Reorganization, shares of the
Bank’s Class A common stock were exchanged for shares of the Company’s common stock on a one-for-one basis. As a result, the Bank became the sole
subsidiary of the Company, the Company became the holding company for the Bank and the stockholders of the Bank became stockholders of the
Company.

In this discussion, unless the context indicates otherwise, references to “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to the Company and the Bank.
However, if the discussion relates to a period before the Effective Date, the terms refer only to the Bank.

General

The following is a discussion of our consolidated financial condition as of March 31, 2021, as compared to December 31, 2020, and our results of
operations for the three month periods ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. The purpose of this discussion is to focus on information about our
financial condition and results of operations which is not otherwise apparent from our consolidated financial statements and is intended to provide insight
into our results of operations and financial condition. This discussion and analysis is best read in conjunction with our unaudited consolidated financial
statements and related notes as well as the financial and statistical data appearing elsewhere in this report and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2020 (the “2020 Annual Report”). Historical results of operations and the percentage relationships among any amounts included, and
any trends that may appear, may not indicate results of operations for any future periods.

In addition to historical information, this discussion includes certain forward-looking statements regarding business matters and events and trends that may
affect our future results. Comments regarding our business that are not historical facts are considered forward-looking statements that involve inherent risks
and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements. For additional information regarding our
cautionary disclosures, see the “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” beginning on page ii of this report.

Overview

Our business

The Company was formed on August 25, 2020 to serve as the holding company for the Bank. The Bank was formed in 1923 as Amalgamated Bank of New
York by the Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America, one of the country’s oldest labor unions. Although we are no longer majority union-owned, The
Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America’s successor, Workers United, an affiliate of the Service Employees International Union that represents workers
in the textile, distribution, food service and gaming industries, remains a significant stockholder, holding approximately 41% of our equity as of March 31,
2021. As of March 31, 2021, our total assets were $6.4 billion, our total loans, net of deferred fees and allowance were $3.2 billion, our total deposits were
$5.7 billion, and our stockholders' equity was $540.2 million. As of March 31, 2021, our trust business held $37.5 billion in assets under custody and $15.7
billion in assets under management.

We offer a complete suite of commercial and retail banking, investment management and trust and custody services. Our commercial banking and trust
businesses are national in scope and we also offer a full range of products and services to both commercial and retail customers through our three branch
offices across New York City, one branch office in Washington, D.C., one branch office in San Francisco, one commercial office in Boston and our digital
banking platform. Our corporate divisions include Commercial Banking, Trust and Investment Management and Consumer Banking. Our product line
includes residential mortgage loans, C&I loans, CRE loans, multifamily mortgages, and a variety of commercial and consumer deposit products, including
non-interest bearing accounts, interest-bearing demand products, savings accounts, money market accounts and certificates of deposit. We also offer online
banking and bill payment services, online cash management, safe deposit box rentals, debit card and ATM card services and the availability of a nationwide
network of ATMs for our customers.

We currently offer a wide range of trust, custody and investment management services, including asset safekeeping, corporate actions, income collections,
proxy services, account transition, asset transfers, and conversion management. We also offer a broad
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range of investment products, including both index and actively-managed funds spanning equity, fixed-income, real estate and alternative investment
strategies to meet the needs of our clients. Our products and services are tailored to our target customer base that prefers a financial partner that is socially
responsible, values-oriented and committed to creating positive change in the world. These customers include advocacy-based non-profits, social welfare
organizations, national labor unions, political organizations, foundations, socially responsible businesses, and other for-profit companies that seek to
balance their profit-making activities with activities that benefit their other stakeholders, as well as the members and stakeholders of these commercial
customers. Our goal is to be the go-to financial partner for people and organizations who strive to make a meaningful impact in our society and who care
about their communities, the environment, and social justice. The Bank has obtained B Corporation  certification, a distinction earned after being
evaluated under rigorous standards of social and environmental performance, accountability, and transparency. The Bank is also the largest of ten
commercial financial institutions in the United States that are members of the Global Alliance for Banking on Values, a network of banking leaders from
around the world committed to advancing positive change in the banking sector.

Continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to create extensive disruptions to the global economy and financial markets and to businesses
and the lives of individuals throughout the world. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is fluid and continues to evolve, adversely affecting many of our
clients. Our business, financial condition and results of operations generally rely upon the ability of our borrowers to repay their loans, the value of
collateral underlying our secured loans, and demand for loans and other products and services we offer, which are highly dependent on the business
environment in our primary markets where it operates and in the United States as a whole. The unprecedented and rapid spread of COVID-19 and its
associated impacts on trade (including supply chains and export levels), travel, employee productivity, unemployment, consumer spending, and other
economic activities has resulted in less economic activity, and significant volatility and disruption in financial markets, and has had an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operation. In addition, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, market interest rates have declined significantly. These
reductions in interest rates and the other effects of the COVID-19 pandemic have had, and are expected to continue to have, possibly materially, an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. The ultimate extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business,
financial condition and results of operations is currently uncertain and will depend on various developments and other factors, including the effect of
governmental and private sector initiatives, the effect of the rollout of vaccinations for the virus, whether such vaccinations will be effective against any
resurgence of the virus, including any new strains, and the ability for customers and businesses to return to their pre-pandemic routine. In addition, it is
reasonably possible that certain significant estimates made in our financial statements could be materially and adversely impacted in the near term as a
result of these conditions.

As a result of these events, we have seen the following continuing impacts to our business since the start of the pandemic:

Impacts on our operations

Our primary geographic markets include the metropolitan areas of New York City, Washington, D.C., San Francisco and Boston. New York City was one
of the areas in the United States initially hardest hit by the COVID-19 pandemic. In response to the pandemic, we took a wide range of actions to help
protect our employees and customers and to ensure the operational continuity of our business, while continuing to provide core banking services to our
consumer and commercial clients. The majority of our employees continue to work remotely with the exception of essential branch and facility staff.
Accordingly, we had to close or reduce hours at our branches in several locations due to the risk of transmission of COVID-19.

As a result of the temporary closures or reduced hours at several of our branches, our executive management reassessed our branch network and
recommended permanently closing six branches due to low traffic, which our Board of Directors approved. We expect to fully serve these affected
customers through our remaining branch network and through our digital platform. We took a charge of $8.3 million related to these branch closures in
2020. However, we expect these closures to benefit our non-interest expenses by approximately $4.0 million annually once fully phased in over time.

As the pandemic subsides, more of our employees will be returning to the office. There may be risks inherent in providing safe, effective working
environments for our staff, including transport, building logistics, and working conditions.

Impacts on our loan portfolio

The disruption in economic activity across the United States, and particularly in New York, has caused stress in the financial condition of both our
consumer and commercial clients. As a result, we established programs offering payment deferrals for customers that needed assistance. In accordance with
interagency guidance and the CARES Act, short term deferrals granted due

TM
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to the COVID-19 pandemic are not considered troubled debt restructurings (“TDRs”) unless the borrower was experiencing financial difficulty prior to the
pandemic. The CARES Act provides temporary relief from the accounting and reporting requirements for TDRs regarding certain loan modifications
related to COVID-19. In addition, under the terms of these deferral agreements, the loans will not be reported as past due or as non-accrual for the agreed
upon term of the deferral, unless additional information becomes available that indicates the loan will not perform as expected when the deferral is
complete. Interest will continue to accrue during the deferral period. In general, the interest and principal originally due during the deferral period will be
due at the contractual end of the loan. If the loan does not exit deferral and does not continue to pay according to contractual terms, the loan will then be
considered as any other loan that is past due or not in agreement with contractual terms, and additional allowance and reversal of related accrued interest
will likely be required for these loans.

As of March 31, 2021, the Company had $8.5 million in loans on payment deferral and still accruing interest, of which $4.9 million were residential loans
and the remaining $3.6 million were commercial or consumer loans.

No COVID-19 related loan deferrals were graded as criticized by our internal grading system solely on the basis of the deferral request, nor was any related
additional allowance recorded. We continue to accrue interest on all COVID-19 related loan deferrals for up to six months. As of March 31, 2021, the
accrued interest balance on COVID-19 related loans where balances were in deferral was $4.7 million.

Other impacts on our results of operation and financial condition

In addition to the factors above, we believe the following factors may impact our earnings, though we are unable to quantify the impacts at this time:

• Increased allowance related to loans that continue to be impacted by the economy after the payment deferral periods end
• Lower net interest margin due to the Federal Reserves’ decision to hold rate targets “near zero”
• Lower loan originations as the credit worthiness of borrowers may be impacted by the current economic environment

As of March 31, 2021, we had $12.9 million of goodwill. During the second quarter of 2020, we performed our annual impairment analysis and determined
no goodwill impairment was required. However, we will continue to monitor the COVID-19 pandemic and the related economic fallout, including changes
in our stock price, the Federal Reserve’s significant reduction in interest rates and other business and market considerations, which may require us to
reevaluate our goodwill impairment analysis. Any goodwill impairment charges we incur could have a material adverse effect on our earnings for one
reporting period, but would not impact our cash flow or regulatory capital levels.

These factors, together or in combination with other events or occurrences that may not yet be known or anticipated, may materially and adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Critical and Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared based on the application of accounting policies generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP, and
conform to general practices within the banking industry. Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 of our audited consolidated
financial statements included in our 2020 Annual Report and our critical accounting policies are more fully described under “Critical Accounting Policies
and Estimates” included in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our 2020 Annual Report.
There have been no significant changes to our critical and significant accounting policies, or the estimates made pursuant to those policies as described in
our 2020 Annual Report.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our unaudited selected historical consolidated financial data for the periods and as of the dates indicated. This data should be
read in conjunction with the unaudited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto contained elsewhere in this report and the information
contained in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020
Selected Operating Data:
Interest income $ 43,417 $ 48,631 
Interest expense 1,573 3,942 
   Net interest income 41,844 44,689 
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (3,261) 8,588 
   Net interest income after provision for loan losses 45,105 36,101 
Non-interest income 4,000 9,118 
Non-interest expense 32,793 32,270 
Income before income taxes 16,312 12,949 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 4,123 3,404 
Net income $ 12,189 $ 9,545 

As of March 31,
(In thousands) 2021 2020
Selected Financial Data:
Total assets $ 6,385,226 $ 5,751,953 
Total cash and cash equivalents 504,923 262,736 
Investment securities 2,220,198 1,728,056 
Total net loans, including loans held for sale 3,239,503 3,514,987 
Bank-owned life insurance 105,666 81,098 
Total deposits 5,720,067 5,076,557 
Total common stockholders’ equity 540,089 473,135 
Total stockholders’ equity 540,222 473,269 

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2021 2020
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Earnings
   Basic $ 0.39 $ 0.30 
   Diluted 0.39 0.30 
Book value per common share (excluding minority interest) 17.33 15.26 
Common shares outstanding 31,169 31,000 
Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic 31,082 31,411 
Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted 31,524 31,806 
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Three Months Ended
March 31,

2021 2020
Selected Performance Metrics:
Return on average assets 0.79 % 0.71 %
Return on average equity 9.11 % 7.65 %
Average equity to average assets 8.71 % 9.25 %
Tangible common equity to assets 8.18 % 7.89 %
Loan yield 3.83 % 4.13 %
Securities yield 2.18 % 3.29 %
Deposit cost 0.11 % 0.33 %
Net interest margin 2.85 % 3.46 %
Efficiency ratio 71.53 % 59.97 %

Asset Quality Ratios:
Nonaccrual loans to total loans 1.78 % 0.96 %
Nonperforming assets to total assets 1.27 % 1.14 %
Allowance for loan losses to nonaccrual loans 63.32 % 124.66 %
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.13 % 1.19 %
Annualized net charge-offs (recoveries) to average loans 0.20 % 0.01 %

As of March 31,
2021 2020

Capital Ratios:
Tier 1 leverage capital ratio 8.06 % 8.47 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 13.70 % 12.74 %
Total risk-based capital ratio 14.74 % 13.96 %
Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 13.70 % 12.74 %

Results of Operations

General

Our results of operations depend substantially on net interest income, which is the difference between interest income on interest-earning assets, consisting
primarily of interest income on loans, investment securities and other short-term investments and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities, consisting
primarily of interest expense on deposits and borrowings. Our results of operations are also dependent on non-interest income, consisting primarily of
income from Trust Department fees, service charges on deposit accounts, net gains on sales of investment securities and income from bank-owned life
insurance (“BOLI”). Other factors contributing to our results of operations include our provisions for loan losses, income taxes, and non-interest expenses,
such as salaries and employee benefits, occupancy and depreciation expenses, professional fees, data processing fees and other miscellaneous operating
costs.

Net income for the first quarter of 2021 was $12.2 million, or $0.39 per diluted share, compared to $9.5 million, or $0.30 per diluted share, for the first
quarter of 2020. The $2.6 million increase in net income for the first quarter of 2021, compared to the first quarter of 2020, is primarily due to a $11.8
million decrease in provision for loan losses, partially offset by a $5.1 million decrease in non-interest income, a $2.8 million decrease in net interest
income, and a $0.5 million increase in non-interest expense.
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income, representing interest income less interest expense, is a significant contributor to our revenues and earnings. We generate interest
income from interest, dividends and prepayment fees on interest-earning assets, including loans, investment securities and other short-term investments. We
incur interest expense from interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities, including interest-bearing deposits, FHLB advances and other borrowings. To
evaluate net interest income, we measure and monitor (i) yields on our loans and other interest-earning assets, (ii) the costs of our deposits and other
funding sources, (iii) our net interest spread and (iv) our net interest margin. Net interest spread is equal to the difference between rates earned on interest-
earning assets and rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest margin is equal to the annualized net interest income divided by average interest-
earning assets. Because non-interest-bearing sources of funds, such as non-interest-bearing deposits and stockholders’ equity, also fund interest-earning
assets, net interest margin includes the benefit of these non-interest-bearing sources.

Changes in the market interest rates and interest rates we earn on interest-earning assets or pay on interest-bearing liabilities, as well as the volume and
types of interest-earning assets, interest-bearing and non-interest-bearing liabilities, are usually the largest drivers of periodic changes in net interest spread,
net interest margin and net interest income.

The following table sets forth information related to our average balance sheet, average yields on assets, and average costs of liabilities for the periods
indicated:

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2021

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2020

(In thousands) Average
Balance

Income /
Expense

Yield /
Rate

Average
Balance

Income /
Expense

Yield /
Rate

   Interest earning assets:
Interest-bearing deposits in banks $ 380,390 $ 90 0.10 % $ 185,281 $ 396 0.86 %
Securities and FHLB stock 2,271,218 12,218 2.18 % 1,544,848 12,623 3.29 %
Total loans, net 3,293,775 31,109 3.83 % 3,464,438 35,612 4.13 %
   Total interest earning assets 5,945,383 43,417 2.96 % 5,194,567 48,631 3.77 %
   Non-interest earning assets:
Cash and due from banks 7,307 9,539 
Other assets 279,308 222,757 
   Total assets $ 6,231,998 $ 5,426,863 

   Interest bearing liabilities:
Savings, NOW and money market deposits 2,512,892 $ 1,222 0.20 % 2,143,247 $ 2,737 0.51 %
Time deposits 280,057 351 0.51 % 381,053 1,178 1.24 %
   Total deposits 2,792,949 1,573 0.23 % 2,524,300 3,915 0.62 %
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 495 — 0.00 % 6,374 27 1.70 %
   Total interest bearing liabilities 2,793,444 1,573 0.23 % 2,530,674 3,942 0.63 %
   Non-interest bearing liabilities:
Demand and transaction deposits 2,786,581 2,300,999 
Other liabilities 109,420 93,309 
   Total liabilities 5,689,445 4,924,982 
   Stockholders' equity 542,553 501,881 
   Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 6,231,998 $ 5,426,863 

   Net interest income / interest rate spread $ 41,844 2.73 % $ 44,689 3.14 %
   Net interest earning assets / net interest margin $ 3,151,939 2.85 % $ 2,663,893 3.46 %

Amounts include resell agreements
Amounts are net of deferred origination costs / (fees) and the allowance for loan losses and includes loans held for sale
 Net interest margin includes prepayment penalty income in 1Q2021, 4Q2020, and 1Q2020 of $641,887, $1,986,500, and $761,568 respectively

(1)

(2)(3)

(1) 

(2) 

(3)
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Our net interest income was $41.8 million for the first quarter of 2021, compared to $44.7 million for the first quarter of 2020. The year-over-year decrease
of $2.8 million, or 6.37%, was primarily attributable to a decrease in average loans of $170.7 million from the prepayment of residential and commercial
loans and a 30 basis point decrease in yield due to lower prepayment penalties and lower yields on originations, partially offset by lower interest expense
on deposits.

Our net interest spread was 2.73% for the three months ended March 31, 2021, compared to 3.14% for the same period in 2020, a decrease of 41 basis
points. Our net interest margin was 2.85% for the first quarter of 2021, a decrease of 61 basis points from 3.46% in the first quarter of 2020. The accretion
of the loan mark from the loans we acquired in our NRB acquisition contributed two basis points to our net interest margin in the first quarter of 2021,
compared to four basis points in the first quarter of 2020. Prepayment penalties earned through loan income contributed $0.6 million, or four basis points,
to our net interest margin in the first quarter of 2021, compared to no impact in the first quarter of 2020.

The yield on average earning assets was 2.96% for the three months ended March 31, 2021, compared to 3.77% for the same period in 2020, a decrease of
81 basis points. This decrease was driven primarily by a decrease in yields on loans and securities due to a decrease in the Federal Funds rate.

The average rate on interest-bearing liabilities was 0.23% for the three months ended March 31, 2021, a decrease of 40 basis points from the same period
in 2020, which was primarily due to a decrease in the rates paid on interest-bearing deposits and a decrease in average borrowings as a result of an
increase in average deposits. The average rate paid on interest-bearing deposits was 0.23% for the three months ended March 31, 2021, a decrease of 39
basis points from the same period in 2020, which was primarily due to a decrease in the pricing on deposits for new and existing customers. Noninterest-
bearing deposits represented 49% of average deposits for the three months ended March 31, 2021, contributing to a total cost of deposits of 11 basis
points in the first quarter of 2021.

Rate-Volume Analysis

Increases and decreases in interest income and interest expense result from changes in average balances (volume) of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities, as well as changes in weighted average interest rates. The table below presents the effect of volume and rate changes on interest income
and expense. Changes in volume are changes in the average balance multiplied by the previous period’s average rate. Changes in rate are changes in the
average rate multiplied by the average balance from the previous period. The net changes attributable to the combined impact of both rate and volume have
been allocated proportionately to the changes due to volume and the changes due to rate:

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2021 over March 31, 2020
Change Due To

(In thousands) Volume Rate Net Change
   Interest earning assets:
Interest-bearing deposits in banks $ 72 $ (378) $ (306)
Securities and FHLB stock 4,733 (5,138) (405)
Total loans, net (1,793) (2,710) (4,503)
   Total interest income 3,012 (8,226) (5,214)

   Interest bearing liabilities:
Savings, NOW and money market deposits 208 (1,723) (1,515)
Time deposits (166) (661) (827)
   Total deposits 42 (2,384) (2,342)
Federal Home Loan Bank advances (27) — (27)
   Total borrowings (27) — (27)
   Total interest expense 15 (2,384) (2,369)
Change in net interest income $ 2,997 $ (5,842) $ (2,845)
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Provision for Loan Losses

We establish an allowance for loan losses through a provision for loan losses charged as an expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income. The
provision for loan losses is the amount of expense that, based on our judgment, is required to maintain the allowance at an adequate level to absorb
probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date and that, in management’s judgment, is appropriate under GAAP. Our determination
of the amount of the allowance and corresponding provision for loan losses considers ongoing evaluations of the credit quality and level of credit risk
inherent in our loan portfolio, levels of nonperforming loans and charge-offs, statistical trends and economic and other relevant factors. The allowance is
increased by provisions charged to expense and decreased by provisions released from expense or by actual charge-offs, net of recoveries on prior loan
charge-offs. In accordance with accounting guidance for business combinations, we recorded all loans acquired in the NRB acquisition at their estimated
fair value at the date of acquisition with no carryover of the related allowance.

Our provision for loan losses totaled a release of $3.3 million for the first quarter of 2021 compared to an expense of $8.6 million for the same period in
2020. The recovery in the first quarter of 2021 was primarily driven by a release of allowance for loan loss due to lower loan balances and the upgrade of
one construction loan to a pass rating.

For a further discussion of the allowance, see “Allowance for Loan Losses” below.

Non-Interest Income

Our non-interest income included Trust Department fees, which consist of fees received in connection with investment advisory and custodial management
services of investment accounts, service fees charged on deposit accounts, income on BOLI, gain or loss on other real estate owned, income from equity
method investments, and other income.

The following table presents our non-interest income for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020
Trust Department fees $ 3,827 $ 4,085 
Service charges on deposit accounts 2,178 2,411 
Bank-owned life insurance 788 384 
Gain (loss) on sale of investment securities available for sale, net 21 499 
Gain (loss) on sale of loans, net 707 135 
Gain (loss) on other real estate owned, net — (23)
Equity method investments (3,682) — 
Other income 161 1,627 
      Total non-interest income $ 4,000 $ 9,118 

Our non-interest income was $4.0 million for the first quarter of 2021, compared to $9.1 million for the same period in 2020, a decrease of $5.1 million, or
56.1%. This decrease was primarily due to a loss of $3.7 million related to equity method investments in the first quarter of 2021 compared to no income or
loss in the same quarter of 2020. We primarily recognized the benefit of the tax credits in the second half of 2020, the initial year of the equity investment.
We expect additional losses in equity method investments of approximately $1.8 million during the remainder of 2021; this loss is due to the timing of the
$7.4 million in tax benefits earned during 2020. These impacts do not include any benefits of new solar equity investments that we may make in the future.
The decrease in other income was primarily driven by a $1.4 million gain on the sale of an owned branch reported in the first quarter of 2020; this was
related to our branch closures and is not a recurring event, and there was no such gain in the first quarter of 2021.

Trust Department fees consist of fees we receive in connection with our investment advisory and custodial management services of investment accounts.
Our Trust Department fees were $3.8 million in the first quarter of 2021, a decrease of $0.3 million, or 6.3%, from same period in 2020, primarily due to
the decline in income from our real-estate fund (discussed below) and the movement of funds to lower yielding products, partially offset by increases in the
market value of assets. Our investment management business historically earned fees from a real-estate fund that we have been winding down since 2018
and from which we no longer earn fees beginning in 2021.
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Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense includes compensation and employee benefits, occupancy and depreciation expense, professional fees (including legal, accounting
and other professional services), data processing, office maintenance and depreciation, amortization of intangible assets, advertising and promotion, and
other expenses. The following table presents non-interest expense for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020

Compensation and employee benefits, net $ 18,039 $ 17,458 
Occupancy and depreciation 3,501 5,506 
Professional fees 3,661 2,983 
Data processing 3,005 2,264 
Office maintenance and depreciation 655 856 
Amortization of intangible assets 302 342 
Advertising and promotion 597 667 
Other 3,033 2,194
      Total non-interest expense $ 32,793 $ 32,270 

Our non-interest expense for the first quarter of 2021 was $32.8 million, an increase of $0.5 million, or 1.6%, from $32.3 million in the first quarter of
2020. The increase was primarily due to increases in data processing, professional fees, and compensation and employee benefits as a result of the
modernization of our Trust department, executive officer search, and holding company reorganization, partially offset by a $2.0 million decrease in
occupancy and depreciation expense related to closing eight branches in New York City in 2020.

Income Taxes

We had a provision for income tax expense of $4.1 million for the first quarter of 2021, compared to $3.4 million for the first quarter of 2020. Our
effective tax rate for the first quarter of 2021 was 25.4%, compared to 26.3% for the first quarter of 2020.

Financial Condition

Balance Sheet

Our total assets were $6.4 billion at March 31, 2021, compared to $6.0 billion at December 31, 2020. The increase of $0.4 billion was driven primarily by a
$466.2 million increase in cash and cash equivalents, a $185.9 million increase in investment securities, which was partially offset by a $224.5 million
decrease in loans receivable, net.

Investment Securities

The primary goal of our securities portfolio is to maintain an available source of liquidity and an efficient investment return on excess capital, while
maintaining a low-risk profile. We also use our securities portfolio to manage interest rate risk, meet Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”) goals and to
provide collateral for certain types of deposits or borrowings. An Investment Committee chaired by our Chief Financial Officer manages our investment
securities portfolio according to written investment policies approved by our Board of Directors. Investments in our securities portfolio may change over
time based on management’s objectives and market conditions.

We seek to minimize credit risk in our securities portfolio through diversification, concentration limits, restrictions on high risk investments (such as
subordinated positions), comprehensive pre-purchase analysis and stress testing, ongoing monitoring and by investing a significant portion of our securities
portfolio in U.S. Government sponsored entity (“GSE”) obligations. GSEs include the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”), the Federal
National Mortgage Association (“FNMA”), the Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”) and the Small Business Administration (“SBA”).
GNMA is a wholly-owned U.S. Government corporation whereas FHLMC and FNMA are private. Mortgage-related securities may include mortgage
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pass-through certificates, participation certificates and collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”). We invest in non-GSE securities in order to generate
higher returns, improve portfolio diversification and reduce interest rate and prepayment risk. With the exception of small legacy CRA investments, Trust
Preferred securities, and certain corporate bonds, all of our non-GSE securities are senior positions that are the top of the capital structure.

Our investment securities portfolio consists of securities classified as available for sale and held to maturity. There were no trading securities in our
investment portfolio at March 31, 2021 or at December 31, 2020. All available for sale securities are carried at fair value and may be used for liquidity
purposes should management consider it to be in our best interest.

At March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, we had available for sale securities of $1.7 billion and $1.5 billion, respectively. The $149.1 million increase
was primarily from the purchase of agency mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”) and commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”) and asset-backed
securities (“ABS”).

At March 31, 2021, our held to maturity securities portfolio primarily consisted of property assessed clean energy, or PACE bonds, tax-exempt municipal
securities, GSE residential certificates and other debt. We carry these securities at amortized cost. We had held to maturity securities of $531.3 million at
March 31, 2021, and $494.4 million at December 31, 2020.

Certain securities have fair values less than amortized cost and, therefore, contain unrealized losses. At March 31, 2021, we evaluated those securities
which had an unrealized loss for other than temporary impairment (“OTTI”), and determined substantially all of the decline in value to be temporary. There
were $1.1 billion of investment securities with unrealized losses at March 31, 2021 of which none had a continuous unrealized loss position for 12
consecutive months or longer that was greater than 5% of amortized cost. We anticipate full recovery of amortized cost with respect to these securities by
the time that these securities mature, or sooner in the case that a more favorable market interest rate environment causes their fair value to increase. We do
not intend to sell these securities and we believe it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell them before full recovery of their amortized cost
basis, which may be at the time of their maturity.
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The following table is a summary of our investment portfolio, using market value for available for sale securities and amortized cost for held to maturity
securities, as of the dates indicated.

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

(In thousands) Amount % of
Portfolio Amount % of

Portfolio
Available for sale:
Mortgage-related:
GSE residential certificates $ 11,630 0.5 % $ 13,299 0.7 %
GSE CMOs 367,775 16.6 % 366,421 18.0 %
GSE commercial certificates & CMO 449,555 20.2 % 432,614 21.3 %
Non-GSE residential certificates 12,611 0.6 % 33,384 1.6 %
Non-GSE commercial certificates 62,117 2.8 % 44,968 2.2 %

Other debt:
U.S. Treasury 203 0.0 % 203 0.0 %
ABS 722,966 32.6 % 597,546 29.3 %
Trust preferred 14,062 0.6 % 13,773 0.7 %
Corporate 48,005 2.2 % 37,654 1.9 %
Other — 0.0 % — 0.0 %

       Total available for sale 1,688,924 76.1 % 1,539,862 75.7 %

Held to maturity:
Mortgage-related:
GSE residential certificates 456 0.0 % 611 0.0 %
Non GSE commercial certificates 203 0.0 % 212 0.0 %

Other debt:
PACE 451,643 20.4 % 421,036 20.7 %
Municipal 73,872 3.3 % 67,490 3.3 %
Other 5,100 0.2 % 5,100 0.3 %

       Total held to maturity 531,274 23.9 % 494,449 24.3 %

Total securities $ 2,220,198 100.0 % $ 2,034,311 100.0 %
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The following table show contractual maturities and yields for the available-for sale and held-to-maturity securities portfolios:

Contractual Maturity as of March 31, 2021
One Year or Less One to Five Years Five to Ten Years Due after Ten Years

(In thousands)

Amortized
Cost

Weighted
Average
Yield 

Amortized
Cost

Weighted
Average
Yield 

Amortized
Cost

Weighted
Average
Yield 

Amortized
Cost

Weighted
Average
Yield 

Available for sale:
Mortgage-related:
GSE residential certificates $ — 0.0 % $ — 0.0 % $ — — % $ 11,312 1.9 %
GSE residential CMOs — 0.0 % — 0.0 % 24,478 2.1 % 331,306 1.8 %
GSE commercial
certificates & CMO 14,459 0.9 % 9,228 2.2 % 298,254 1.2 % 122,522 2.1 %

Non-GSE residential
certificates — 0.0 % — 0.0 % — 0.0 % 12,518 1.7 %

Non-GSE commercial
certificates — 0.0 % — 0.0 % — 0.0 % 62,557 1.4 %

Other debt:
 U.S. Treasury 200 1.7 % — 0.0 % — 0.0 % — 0.0 %
ABS — 0.0 % 14,775 2.6 % 215,602 1.7 % 489,112 1.8 %
Trust preferred — 0.0 % — 0.0 % 14,628 0.8 % — 0.0 %
Corporate — 0.0 % 7,965 6.0 % 35,009 4.2 % 4,000 3.5 %

Held to maturity:
Mortgage-related:
GSE residential certificates — 0.0 % — 0.0 % 3 0.5 % 453 3.6 %
Non GSE commercial
certificates — 0.0 % — 0.0 % — 0.0 % 203 5.6 %

Other debt:
PACE — — % — — % — — % 451,643 4.1 %
Municipal — 0.0 % — 0.0 % 9,750 1.1 % 64,122 2.1 %
Other 2,000 1.5 % 3,100 3.3 % — 0.0 % — 0.0 %

Total securities $ 16,659 1.0 % $ 35,068 3.3 % $ 597,724 1.6 % $ 1,549,748 2.5 %

 Estimated yield based on book price (amortized cost divided by par) using estimated prepayments and no change in interest rates.

The following table shows a breakdown of our asset backed securities by sector and ratings as of March 31, 2021:

Credit Ratings
Highest Rating if split rated

(In thousands) Amount %
Expected Avg.
Life in Years

%
Floating % AAA % AA % A

%Not
Rated Total

CLO Commercial &
Industrial $ 348,908 50 % 2.9 100 % 100 % 0 % 0 % 0 % 100 %
Consumer 151,280 20 % 4.5 0 % 26 % 9 % 65 % 0 % 100 %
Mortgage 128,467 20 % 2.7 100 % 100 % 0 % 0 % 0 % 100 %
Student 94,311 10 % 5.1 88 % 94 % 6 % 0 % 0 % 100 %
Total Securities: $ 722,966 100 % 3.5 77 % 84 % 3 % 13 % 0 % 100 %

(1) (1) (1) (1)

(1)
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Loans

Lending-related income is the most important component of our net interest income and is the main driver of our results of operations. Total loans, net of
deferred origination fees, were $3.2 billion as of March 31, 2021 compared to $3.4 billion as of December 31, 2020. Within our commercial loan portfolio,
our primary focus has been on C&I, multifamily and CRE lending. Within our retail loan portfolio, our primary focus has been on residential 1-4 family
(1st lien) mortgages. We intend to focus any organic growth in our loan portfolio on these lending areas as part of our strategic plan.

In the first quarter of 2021, we purchased $34.3 million of solar loans and $24.4 million of commercial loans that are unconditionally guaranteed by the
United States government.

The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio, as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

(In thousands) March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Amount % of total loans Amount % of total loans

Commercial portfolio:
Commercial and industrial $ 612,581 18.8 % $ 677,192 19.5 %
Multifamily mortgages 882,231 27.2 % 947,177 27.2 %
Commercial real estate mortgages 364,308 11.2 % 372,736 10.7 %
Construction and land development mortgages 50,267 1.5 % 56,087 1.6 %

   Total commercial portfolio 1,909,387 58.7 % 2,053,192 59.0 %

Retail portfolio:
Residential real estate lending 1,137,851 35.0 % 1,238,697 35.5 %
Consumer and other 206,451 6.3 % 190,676 5.5 %

   Total retail portfolio 1,344,302 41.3 % 1,429,373 41.0 %
   Total loans 3,253,689 100.0 % 3,482,565 100.0 %

Net deferred loan origination costs (fees) 5,815 6,330 
Allowance for loan losses (36,662) (41,589)

    Total loans, net $ 3,222,842 $ 3,447,306 

Commercial loan portfolio

Our commercial loan portfolio comprised 58.7% of our total loan portfolio at March 31, 2021 and 59.0% of our total loan portfolio at December 31, 2020.
The major categories of our commercial loan portfolio are discussed below:

C&I. Our C&I loans are generally made to small and medium-sized manufacturers and wholesale, retail and service-based businesses to provide either
working capital or to finance major capital expenditures. The primary source of repayment for C&I loans is generally operating cash flows of the business.
We also seek to minimize risks related to these loans by requiring such loans to be collateralized by various business assets (including inventory, equipment
and accounts receivable). The average size of our C&I loans at March 31, 2021 by exposure was $3.5 million with a median size of $1.0 million. We have
shifted our lending strategy to focus on developing full customer relationships including deposits, cash management, and lending. The businesses that we
focus on are generally mission aligned with our core values, including organic and natural products, sustainable companies, clean energy, nonprofits, and B
Corporations .

Our C&I loans totaled $612.6 million at March 31, 2021, which comprised 18.8% of our total loan portfolio. During the three months ended March 31,
2021, the C&I loan portfolio decreased by 9.5% from $677.2 million at December 31, 2020.

Multifamily. Our multifamily loans are generally used to purchase or refinance apartment buildings of five units or more, which collateralize the loan, in
major metropolitan areas within our markets. Multifamily loans have 78% of their exposure in New York City—our largest geographic concentration. Our
multifamily loans have been underwritten under stringent guidelines on loan-to-value and debt service coverage ratios that are designed to mitigate credit
and concentration risk in this loan category.

 TM
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Our multifamily loans totaled $882.2 million at March 31, 2021, which comprised 27.2% of our total loan portfolio. During the three months ended March
31, 2021, the multifamily loan portfolio decreased by 6.9% from $947.2 million at December 31, 2020.

CRE. Our CRE loans are used to purchase or refinance office buildings, retail centers, industrial facilities, medical facilities and mixed-used buildings.
Included in this total are 25 borrowers financing owner‑occupied buildings which account for an aggregate total of $43 million in loans as of March 31,
2021.

Our CRE loans totaled $364.3 million at March 31, 2021, which comprised 11.2% of our total loan portfolio. During the three months ended March 31,
2021, the CRE loan portfolio decreased by 2.3% from $372.7 million at December 31, 2020.

Retail loan portfolio

Our retail loan portfolio comprised 41.3% of our loan portfolio at March 31, 2021 and 41.0% of our loan portfolio at December 31, 2020. The major
categories of our retail loan portfolio are discussed below.

Residential real estate lending. Our residential 1-4 family mortgage loans are residential mortgages that are primarily secured by single-family homes,
which can be owner occupied or investor owned. These loans are either originated by our loan officers or purchased from other originators with the
servicing retained by such originators. Our residential real estate lending portfolio is 99% first mortgage loans and 1% second mortgage loans. As of
March 31, 2021, 81% of our residential 1-4 family mortgage loans were either originated by our loan officers since 2012 or were acquired in our
acquisition of NRB, 13% were purchased from two third parties on or after July 2014, and 6% were purchased by us from other originators before 2010.
Our residential real estate lending loans totaled $1.1 billion at March 31, 2021, which comprised 84.6% of our retail loan portfolio and 35.0% of our total
loan portfolio. In March 31, 2021, our residential real estate lending loans decreased by 8.1% from $1.2 billion at December 31, 2020.

Consumer and other. Our consumer and other portfolio is comprised of purchased student loans, residential solar loans, unsecured consumer loans and
overdraft lines. Our consumer and other loans totaled $206.5 million at March 31, 2021, which comprised 6.3% of our total loan portfolio, compared to
$190.7 million, or 5.5% of our total loan portfolio, at December 31, 2020.

Maturities and Sensitivity of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates

The information in the following table is based on the contractual maturities of individual loans, including loans that may be subject to renewal at their
contractual maturity. Renewal of these loans is subject to review and credit approval, as well as modification of terms upon maturity. Actual repayments of
loans may differ from the maturities reflected below because borrowers have the right to prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties. The
following tables summarize the loan maturity distribution by type and related interest rate characteristics at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

(In thousands) One year or less
After one but

within five years After 5 years Total
March 31, 2021:
Commercial Portfolio:
Commercial and industrial $ 83,909 $ 246,758 $ 281,914 $ 612,581 
Multifamily 115,161 461,529 305,541 882,231 
Commercial real estate 66,648 252,043 45,617 364,308 
Construction and land development 35,481 9,797 4,989 50,267 

Retail Portfolio:
Residential real estate lending 444 2,150 1,135,257 1,137,851 
Consumer and other 536 1,743 204,172 206,451 
   Total Loans $ 302,179 $ 974,020 $ 1,977,490 $ 3,253,689 
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(In thousands)
After one but

within five years After 5 years Total
Gross loan maturing after one year with:

Fixed interest rates $ 840,557 $ 1,317,134 $ 2,157,691 
Floating or adjustable interest rates 133,463 660,356 793,819 

Total Loans $ 974,020 $ 1,977,490 $ 2,951,510 

(In thousands) One year or less
After one but

within five years After 5 years Total
December 31, 2020:
Commercial Portfolio:
Commercial and industrial $ 149,870 $ 266,209 $ 261,113 $ 677,192 
Multifamily 127,009 496,107 324,061 947,177 
Commercial real estate 58,124 259,664 54,948 372,736 
Construction and land development 41,293 9,773 5,021 56,087 

Retail Portfolio:
Residential real estate lending 450 1,834 1,236,413 1,238,697 
Consumer and other 536 2,372 187,768 190,676 
   Total retail $ 377,282 $ 1,035,959 $ 2,069,324 $ 3,482,565 

(In thousands)
After one but

within five years After 5 years Total
Gross loan maturing after one year with:

Fixed interest rates $ 870,644 $ 1,360,222 $ 2,230,865 
Floating or adjustable interest rates 165,315 709,102 874,417 

Total Loans $ 1,035,959 $ 2,069,324 $ 3,105,282 

Allowance for Loan Losses

We maintain the allowance at a level we believe is sufficient to absorb probable incurred losses in our loan portfolio given the conditions at the time.
Management determines the adequacy of the allowance based on periodic evaluations of the loan portfolio and other factors, including end-of-period loan
levels and portfolio composition, observable trends in nonperforming loans, our historical loan losses, known and inherent risks in the portfolio,
underwriting practices, adverse situations that may impact a borrower’s ability to repay, the estimated value and sufficiency of any underlying collateral,
credit risk grade assessments, loan impairment and economic conditions. These evaluations are inherently subjective as they require management to make
material estimates, all of which may be susceptible to significant change. The allowance is increased by provisions for loan losses charged to expense and
decreased by actual charge-offs, net of recoveries of previous amounts charged-off.

The allowance consists of specific allowances for loans that are individually classified as impaired and general components. Impaired loans include loans
placed on nonaccrual status and TDRs. Loans are considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable
to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original contractual terms of the loan agreements. When determining if we will be unable to collect all
principal and interest payments due in accordance with the original contractual terms of the loan agreement, we consider the borrower’s overall financial
condition, resources and payment record, support from guarantors, and the realized value of any collateral. Loans that experience insignificant payment
delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the
reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

Impaired loans are individually identified and evaluated for impairment based on a combination of internally assigned risk ratings and a defined dollar
threshold. If a loan is impaired, a specific reserve is applied to the loan so that the loan is reported, net, at the
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discounted expected future cash flows or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is collateral dependent. Impaired loans which do not meet the criteria
for individual evaluation are evaluated in homogeneous pools of loans with similar risk characteristics. In accordance with the accounting guidance for
business combinations, there was no allowance brought forward on any of the loans we acquired in our acquisition of NRB. For purchased non-credit
impaired loans, credit discounts representing the principal losses expected over the life of the loan are a component of the initial fair value and the discount
is accreted to interest income over the life of the loan. Subsequent to the acquisition date, the method used to evaluate the sufficiency of the credit discount
is similar to organic loans, and if necessary, additional reserves are recognized in the allowance. At the close of the NRB acquisition, there were no
purchase credit impaired loans. As of March 31, 2021, the remaining Mark is $1.5 million. In addition, the ALLL includes $1.9 million on-balance-sheet
and $19,000 off-balance-sheet reserves for loan downgrades, increases in usage of lines of credit, construction disbursements and reclassifications of
product types subsequent to the acquisition. Since the close of the NRB acquisition, we have charged off $1.5 million of commercial loans and as of
March 31, 2021, there were $9.4 million of nonaccrual loans.

The following tables presents, by loan type, the changes in the allowance for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(In thousands) 2021 2020
 
Balance at beginning of period $ 41,589 $ 33,847 
Loan charge-offs:
Commercial portfolio:
  Commercial and industrial — — 
  Multifamily 1,908 — 
  Commercial real estate — — 
  Construction and land development — — 
Retail portfolio:
  Residential real estate lending 141 24 
  Consumer and other 340 304 
      Total loan charge-offs 2,389 328 
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off:
Commercial portfolio:
  Commercial and industrial 204 1 
  Multifamily — — 
  Commercial real estate — — 
  Construction and land development 1 — 
Retail portfolio:
  Residential real estate lending 495 212 
  Consumer and other 23 28 
      Total loan recoveries 723 241 
Net (recoveries) charge-offs 1,666 87 
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (3,261) 8,588 
Balance at end of period $ 36,662 $ 42,348 

The allowance decreased $4.9 million to $36.7 million at March 31, 2021 from $41.6 million at December 31, 2020. The decrease was primarily due to
decreases in loan balances and improvement in the risk rating on one construction loan. At March 31, 2021, we had $75.6 million of impaired loans for
which a specific allowance of $4.9 million was made, compared to $80.5 million of impaired loans at December 31, 2020 for which a specific allowance of
$6.2 million was made. The ratio of allowance to total loans was 1.13% for March 31, 2021 and 1.19% for December 31, 2020.
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Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

The following table presents the allocation of the allowance and the percentage of the total amount of loans in each loan category listed as of the dates
indicated:

At March 31, 2021 At December 31, 2020
(In thousands) Amount % of total loans Amount % of total loans
Commercial Portfolio:
Commercial and industrial $ 8,692 18.8 % $ 9,065 19.5 %
Multifamily $ 6,125 27.2 % $ 10,324 27.2 %
Commercial real estate $ 8,464 11.2 % $ 6,213 10.7 %
Construction and land development $ 1,391 1.5 % $ 2,077 1.6 %

Total commercial portfolio $ 24,672 58.7 % $ 27,679 59.0 %

Retail Portfolio:
Residential real estate lending $ 10,747 35.0 % $ 12,330 35.5 %
Consumer and other $ 1,243 6.3 % $ 1,580 5.5 %

Total retail portfolio $ 11,990 41.3 % $ 13,910 41.0 %

Total allowance for loan losses $ 36,662 $ 41,589 

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include all loans categorized as nonaccrual or restructured, other real estate owned and other repossessed assets. The accrual of
interest on loans is discontinued, or the loan is placed on nonaccrual, when the full collection of principal and interest is in doubt. We generally do not
accrue interest on loans that are 90 days or more past due (unless we are in the process of collection or an extension and determine that the customer is not
in financial difficulty). When a loan is placed on nonaccrual, previously accrued but unpaid interest is reversed and charged against interest income and
future accruals of interest are discontinued. Payments by borrowers for loans on nonaccrual are applied to loan principal. Loans are returned to accrual
status when, in our judgment, the borrower’s ability to satisfy principal and interest obligations under the loan agreement has improved sufficiently to
reasonably assure recovery of principal and the borrower has demonstrated a sustained period of repayment performance.

A loan is identified as a troubled debt restructuring, or TDR, when we, for economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulties, grant a
concession to the borrower. The concessions may be granted in various forms, including interest rate reductions, principal forgiveness, extension of
maturity date, waiver or deferral of payments and other actions intended to minimize potential losses. A loan that has been restructured as a TDR may not
be disclosed as a TDR in years subsequent to the restructuring if certain conditions are met. Generally, a nonaccrual loan that is restructured remains on
nonaccrual status for a period no less than six months to demonstrate that the borrower can meet the restructured terms. However, the borrower’s
performance prior to the restructuring or other significant events at the time of restructuring may be considered in assessing whether the borrower can meet
the new terms and may result in the loan being returned to accrual status after a shorter performance period. If the borrower’s performance under the new
terms is not reasonably assured, the loan remains classified as a nonaccrual loan.

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have experienced a significant increase in the number of requests for temporary loan modifications. As of
March 31, 2021, we had COVID-19 related loan payment deferrals or deferral requests in process totaling $8.5 million, of which 42% were in our
commercial portfolio. We have granted these borrowers short-term concessions of three to six months in the form of payment deferrals. According to the
interagency guidance and the CARES Act, loans modified during the COVID-19 pandemic are not considered TDRs as long as the borrower was not
experiencing financial difficulty before the pandemic and the reason for the deferral is temporary in nature and the loans are expected to continue
performing after the COVID-19 pandemic.

52



The following table sets forth our nonperforming assets as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

(In thousands) March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Loans 90 days past due and accruing $ 2,424 $ 1,404 
Nonaccrual loans excluding held for sale loans and restructured loans 37,324 40,039 
Nonaccrual loans held for sale — — 
Troubled debt restructured loans - nonaccrual 20,578 20,885 
Troubled debt restructured loans - accruing 17,656 19,553 
Other real estate owned 2,988 306 
Impaired securities 61 47 
Total nonperforming assets $ 81,031 $ 82,234 

Nonaccrual loans:
  Commercial and industrial $ 12,347 $ 12,444 
  Multifamily 7,660 9,575 
  Commercial real estate 4,133 3,433 
  Construction and land development 8,605 11,184 
    Total commercial portfolio 32,745 36,636 

  Residential real estate lending 24,300 23,656 
  Consumer and other 857 632 
    Total retail portfolio 25,157 24,288 
  Total nonaccrual loans $ 57,902 $ 60,924 

Nonperforming assets to total assets 1.27 % 1.38 %
Nonaccrual assets to total assets 0.95 % 1.02 %
Nonaccrual loans to total loans 1.78 % 1.75 %
Allowance for loan losses to nonaccrual loans 63.32 % 68.26 %

Total nonperforming assets totaled $81.0 million at March 31, 2021 compared to $82.2 million at December 31, 2020. The decrease in nonperforming
assets at March 31, 2021 compared to December 31, 2020 was primarily driven by the decrease of $4.4 million of non-accruing construction and
multifamily loans, partially offset by an increase of $2.7 million of those loans transferring into other real estate owned.

Potential problem loans are loans which management has doubts as to the ability of the borrowers to comply with the present loan repayment terms.
Potential problem loans are performing loans and include our special mention and substandard-accruing commercial loans and/or loans 30-89 days past
due. Potential problem loans are not included in the nonperforming assets table above and totaled $287.9 million, or 4.5% of total assets, at March 31,
2021, as follows: $274.7 million are commercial loans currently in workout that management expects will be rehabilitated; $6.0 million are commercial
loans that are current on payments and are reported as 30-89 days past due, in renewal or extension negotiations, and inclusive of workouts; $9.9 million
are residential 1-4 family or retail loans, with $8.7 million at 30 days delinquent, and $1.2 million at 60 days delinquent.

Resell Agreements

As of March 31, 2021, we have entered into $152.3 million of short term investments of resell agreements backed by government guaranteed loans, with a
weighted interest rate of 1.25%.
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Deferred Tax Asset

We had a deferred tax asset, net of deferred tax liabilities, of $26.1 million at March 31, 2021 and $27.9 million at December 31, 2020. As of March 31,
2021, our deferred tax assets were fully realizable with no valuation allowance held against the balance. Our management concluded that it was more-
likely-than-not that the entire amount will be realized.

We will evaluate the recoverability of our net deferred tax asset on a periodic basis and record decreases (increases) as a deferred tax provision (benefit) in
the Consolidated Statements of Income as appropriate.

Deposits

Deposits represent our primary source of funds. We are focused on growing our core deposits through relationship-based banking with our business and
consumer clients. Total deposits were $5.7 billion at March 31, 2021, compared to $5.3 billion at December 31, 2020. We believe that our strong deposit
franchise is attributable to our mission-based strategy of developing and maintaining relationships with our clients who share similar values and through
maintaining a high level of service.

We gather deposits through each of our three branch locations across New York City, our one branch in Washington, D.C., our one branch in San Francisco
and through the efforts of our commercial banking team including our Boston group which focuses nationally on business growth. Through our branch
network, online, mobile and direct banking channels, we offer a variety of deposit products including demand deposit accounts, money market deposits,
NOW accounts, savings and certificates of deposit. We bank politically active customers, such as campaigns, PACs, and state and national party
committees, which we refer to as political deposits. These deposits exhibit seasonality based on election cycles. As of March 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020, we had approximately $692.0 million and $602.8 million, respectively, in political deposits which are primarily in demand deposits.

Maturities of time certificates of deposit and other time deposits of $100,000 or more outstanding at March 31, 2021 are summarized as follows:

Maturities as of March 31, 2021
(In thousands)
Within three months $ 47,477 
After three but within six months 46,387 
After six months but within twelve months 47,974 
After twelve months 39,086 

$ 180,924 

Liquidity

Liquidity refers to our ability to maintain cash flow that is adequate to fund our operations, support asset growth, maintain reserve requirements and meet
present and future obligations of deposit withdrawals, lending obligations and other contractual obligations through either the sale or maturity of existing
assets or by obtaining additional funding through liability management. Our liquidity risk management policy provides the framework that we use to
maintain adequate liquidity and sources of available liquidity at levels that enable us to meet all reasonably foreseeable short-term, long-term and strategic
liquidity demands. The Asset and Liability Management Committee is responsible for oversight of liquidity risk management activities in accordance with
the provisions of our liquidity risk policy and applicable bank regulatory capital and liquidity laws and regulations. Our liquidity risk management process
includes (i) ongoing analysis and monitoring of our funding requirements under various balance sheet and economic scenarios, (ii) review and monitoring
of lenders, depositors, brokers and other liability holders to ensure appropriate diversification of funding sources and (iii) liquidity contingency planning to
address liquidity needs in the event of unforeseen market disruption impacting a wide range of variables. We continuously monitor our liquidity position in
order for our assets and liabilities to be managed in a manner that will meet our immediate and long-term funding requirements. We manage our liquidity
position to meet the daily cash flow needs of customers, while maintaining an appropriate balance between assets and liabilities to meet the return on
investment objectives of our stockholders. We also monitor our liquidity requirements in light of interest rate trends, changes in the economy, and the
scheduled maturity and interest rate sensitivity of our securities and loan portfolios and deposits. Liquidity management is made more complicated because
different balance sheet components are subject to varying degrees of management control. For example, the timing of maturities of our investment
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portfolio is fairly predictable and subject to a high degree of control when we make investment decisions. Net deposit inflows and outflows, however, are
far less predictable and are not subject to the same degree of certainty.

Our liquidity position is supported by management of our liquid assets and liabilities and access to alternative sources of funds. Our short-term and long-
term liquidity requirements are primarily to fund on-going operations, including payment of interest on deposits and debt, extensions of credit to borrowers
and capital expenditures. These liquidity requirements are met primarily through our deposits, FHLB advances and the principal and interest payments we
receive on loans and investment securities. Cash, interest-bearing deposits in third-party banks, securities available for sale and maturing or prepaying
balances in our investment and loan portfolios are our most liquid assets. Other sources of liquidity that are available to us include the sale of loans we hold
for investment, the ability to acquire additional national market non-core deposits, borrowings through the Federal Reserve’s discount window and the
issuance of debt or equity securities. We believe that the sources of available liquidity are adequate to meet our current and reasonably foreseeable future
liquidity needs.

At March 31, 2021, our cash and equivalents, which consist of cash and amounts due from banks and interest-bearing deposits in other financial
institutions, amounted to $504.9 million, or 7.9% of total assets, compared to $38.8 million, or 0.6% of total assets at December 31, 2020. Our available for
sale securities at March 31, 2021 were $1.7 billion, or 26.5% of total assets, compared to $1.5 billion, or 25.8% of total assets at December 31, 2020.
Investment securities with an aggregate fair value of $103.7 million at March 31, 2021 were pledged to secure public deposits and repurchase agreements.

The liability portion of the balance sheet serves as our primary source of liquidity. We plan to meet our future cash needs through the generation of
deposits. Customer deposits have historically provided a sizeable source of relatively stable and low-cost funds. We are also a member of the FHLB, from
which we can borrow for leverage or liquidity purposes. The FHLB requires that securities and qualifying loans be pledged to secure any advances. At
March 31, 2021, we had no advances from the FHLB and a remaining credit availability of $1.5 billion. In addition, we maintain borrowing capacity of
approximately $115.2 million with the Federal Reserve’s discount window that is secured by certain securities from our portfolio which are not pledged for
other purposes.

Capital Resources

Total stockholders’ equity at March 31, 2021 was $540.2 million, compared to $535.8 million at December 31, 2020, an increase of $4.4 million. The
increase was primarily driven by $12.2 million of net income, partially offset by a $4.0 million decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income due
to the mark to market on our securities portfolio and a $0.9 million decrease in additional paid-in-capital.

We are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking regulators. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can
initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by federal banking regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect
on our financial statements.

Regulatory capital rules adopted in July 2013 and fully phased in as of January 1, 2019, which are referred to as the Basel III rules, impose minimum
capital requirements for bank holding companies and banks. The Basel III rules apply to all national and state banks and savings associations regardless of
size and bank holding companies and savings and loan holding companies with consolidated assets of more than $3 billion. In order to avoid restrictions on
capital distributions or discretionary bonus payments to executives, a covered banking organization must maintain the fully phased in “capital conservation
buffer” of 2.5% on top of its minimum risk-based capital requirements. This buffer must consist solely of common equity Tier 1 risk-based capital, but the
buffer applies to all three measurements (common equity Tier 1 risk-based capital, Tier 1 capital and total capital). The capital conservation is equal to
2.5% of risk-weighted assets.
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The following table shows the regulatory capital ratios for the Bank and the Company at the dates indicated:

Actual
For Capital

Adequacy Purposes
To Be Considered
Well Capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(In thousands)
March 31, 2021
   Total capital to risk weighted assets $ 537,976 14.74 % $ 292,000 8.00 % $ 365,000 10.00 %
   Tier I capital to risk weighted assets 500,157 13.70 % 219,000 6.00 % 292,000 8.00 %
   Tier I capital to average assets 500,157 8.06 % 248,067 4.00 % 310,084 5.00 %
   Common equity tier 1 to risk weighted assets 500,157 13.70 % 164,250 4.50 % 237,250 6.50 %

December 31, 2020
   Total capital to risk weighted assets $ 534,684 14.25 % $ 300,199 8.00 % $ 375,249 10.00 %
   Tier I capital to risk weighted assets 491,913 13.11 % 225,149 6.00 % 300,199 8.00 %
   Tier I capital to average assets 491,913 7.97 % 246,904 4.00 % 308,630 5.00 %
   Common equity tier 1 to risk weighted assets 491,913 13.11 % 168,862 4.50 % 243,912 6.50 %

(1) Amounts are shown exclusive of the capital conservation buffer of 2.50%.
As the Company did not have significant financial activity in the first quarter of 2021, the ratios above are the same at the Bank and the Company level.

As of March 31, 2021, the Company and the Bank were categorized as “well capitalized” under the prompt corrective action measures and met the capital
conservation buffer requirements. 
Contractual Obligations

We have entered into contractual obligations in the normal course of business that involve elements of credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The
following table summarizes these relations as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

March 31, 2021

(In thousands) Total Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years
More than 5

years
Operating Leases $ 55,633 $ 7,293 $ 19,749 $ 19,679 $ 8,912 
Purchase Obligations 35,787 3,312 9,224 9,224 14,027 
Certificates of Deposit 264,678 181,068 67,024 15,327 1,259 

$ 356,098 $ 191,673 $ 95,997 $ 44,230 $ 24,198 

December 31, 2020

(In thousands) Total Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years
More than 5

years
Operating Leases $ 58,146 $ 9,806 $ 19,749 $ 19,679 $ 8,912 
Purchase Obligations 36,437 3,962 9,224 9,224 14,027 
Certificates of Deposit 272,025 231,239 32,236 7,825 725 

$ 366,608 $ 245,007 $ 61,209 $ 36,728 $ 23,664 

Investment Obligations

We are party to agreements with Pace Funding Group LLC, or PFG, for the purchase of up to $300 million of property assessed clean energy, or PACE,
assessment securities by the fourth quarter of 2021. Additionally, the Bank has an additional obligation up to $25 million for other PACE related purchases.
These investments are to be held in our held-to-maturity investment portfolio.

(1)
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As of March 31, 2021, we had fulfilled $214.5 million of these obligations. As of December 31, 2020, we had fulfilled $165.4 million of our obligation.
The PACE assessments have equal-lien priority with property taxes and generally rank senior to first lien mortgages.
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Item 3.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

There have been no material changes in our market risk as of March 31, 2021 from that presented in the 2020 Annual Report. The interest rate sensitivity
position at March 31, 2021 is discussed below.

Evaluation of Interest Rate Risk

Our simulation models incorporate various assumptions, which we believe are reasonable but which may have a significant impact on results such as: (1)
the timing of changes in interest rates, (2) shifts or rotations in the yield curve, (3) loan and securities prepayment speeds for different interest rate
scenarios, (4) interest rates and balances of indeterminate-maturity deposits for different scenarios, and (5) new volume and yield assumptions for loans,
securities and deposits. Because of limitations inherent in any approach used to measure interest rate risk, simulation results are not intended as a forecast
of the actual effect of a change in market interest rates on our results but rather to better plan and execute appropriate asset-liability management strategies
and manage our interest rate risk.

Potential changes to our net interest income and economic value of equity in hypothetical rising and declining rate scenarios calculated as of March 31,
2021 are presented in the following table. The projections assume immediate, parallel shifts downward of the yield curve of 100 basis points and
immediate, parallel shifts upward of the yield curve of 100, 200, 300 and 400 basis points. In the current interest rate environment, a downward shift of the
yield curve of 200, 300 and 400 basis points does not provide us with meaningful results and, therefore, is not shown.

The results of this simulation analysis are hypothetical and should not be relied on as indicative of expected operating results. A variety of factors might
cause actual results to differ substantially from what is depicted. For example, if the timing and magnitude of interest rate changes differ from those
projected, our net interest income might vary significantly. Non-parallel yield curve shifts such as a flattening or steepening of the yield curve or changes in
interest rate spreads, would also cause our net interest income to be different from that depicted. An increasing interest rate environment could reduce
projected net interest income if deposits and other short-term liabilities re-price faster than expected or faster than our assets re-price. Actual results could
differ from those projected if we grow assets and liabilities faster or slower than estimated, if we experience a net outflow of deposit liabilities or if our mix
of assets and liabilities otherwise changes. Actual results could also differ from those projected if we experience substantially different repayment speeds in
our loan portfolio than those assumed in the simulation model. Finally, these simulation results do not contemplate all the actions that we may undertake in
response to potential or actual changes in interest rates, such as changes to our loan, investment, deposit, funding or hedging strategies.

Change in Market Interest Rates as of
March 31, 2021 Estimated Increase (Decrease) in:

Immediate Shift
Economic Value of

Equity
Economic Value of

Equity ($)
Year 1 Net Interest

Income
Year 1 Net Interest

Income ($)
+400 basis points 5.9 % 60,545 32.6 % 57,269 
+300 basis points 10.0 % 102,586 29.6 % 51,999 
+200 basis points 12.0 % 123,751 23.0 % 40,328 
+100 basis points 9.0 % 92,220 12.4 % 21,795 
-100 basis points -14.3 % (147,214) -14.4 % (25,299)
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Item 4.    Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, with the participation of other members of management, have evaluated the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) under the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based on such evaluations, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective (at the reasonable assurance level) to ensure that the information required to be included in this report has been recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and to ensure that the information required to be
included in this report was accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2021 that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II

Item 1.    Legal Proceedings.

We are subject to certain pending and threatened legal actions that arise out of the normal course of business. Additionally, we, like all banking
organizations, are subject to heightened legal and regulatory compliance and litigation risk. Based upon management’s current knowledge, following
consultation with legal counsel, in the opinion of management, there is no pending or threatened legal matter that would result in a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial condition or results of operation, either individually or in the aggregate.
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Item 1A.    Risk Factors.

Investing in shares of our common stock involves certain risks, including those identified and described in Item 1A. of our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, as well as cautionary statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including those under the
caption “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and set forth in our other filings with the SEC.

There have been no material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2020.

61



Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

On March 1, 2021, the Company completed its holding company reorganization and acquired all of the outstanding stock of the Bank. Following the
Reorganization, the Bank’s previous approved share repurchase program was cancelled. Effective April 13, 2021, the Company received authorization
to repurchase up to $10.0 million of the Company’s common stock (the “Repurchase Program”). Repurchases by the Company under the Repurchase
Program will be carried out over a one-year period and may be made from time to time through open market purchases, trading plans established in
accordance with SEC rules, privately negotiated transactions, or by other means.

The actual means and timing of any repurchases, quantity of purchased shares and prices will be, subject to certain limitations, at
the discretion of management and will depend on a number of factors, including, without limitation, market prices of the
Company’s common stock, general market and economic conditions, and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
Repurchases under the Repurchase Program may be initiated, discontinued, suspended or restarted at any time. The Company is
not obligated to repurchase any shares under the Repurchase Program.

The following schedule summarizes our total monthly share repurchase activity for the three months ended March 31, 2021:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period (Settlement Date)
Total number of

shares purchased
Average price
paid per share

Total number of
shares purchased
as part of publicly

announced plans or
programs

Approximate dollar
value that may yet be

purchased under plans
or programs

January 1 through January 31, 2021 — — — 12,212,492 
February 1 through February 28, 2021 72,931 $ 16.85 24,888 11,791,820 
March 1 through March 31, 2021 10,057 17.73 — — 
    Total 82,988 $ 16.96 24,888 

(1) Includes shares withheld by the Bank to pay the taxes associated with the vesting of stock options. There were 58,100 shares withheld for taxes during the quarter.

(2) On May 29, 2019, the Bank’s Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to $25 million of the Bank's outstanding common stock. The
authorization did not require the Bank to acquire any specified number of common shares and could be commenced, suspended or discontinued without prior notice. Under this
authorization, $420,672 were purchased during the first quarter of 2021. Following the Reorganization, the Bank's approved share repurchase program was cancelled.

(3) Following the Reorganization, the Bank's approved share repurchase program was cancelled.

 (1)

(2)

(2)

(3)
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Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibit
10.1 Amalgamated Financial Corp. Annual Incentive Plan

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Section 1350 Certifications

101

The following materials from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Amalgamated Financial Corp. for the quarter
ended March 31, 2021, formatted in iXBRL (Inline eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, (ii) Consolidated Statements of
Income for the quarters ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the quarters ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
for the quarters ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the quarters
ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).

104 The cover page of Amalgamated Financial Corp.’s Form 10-Q Report for the quarter ended March 31, 2021,
formatted in Inline XBRL (included with the Exhibit 101 attachments).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

AMALGAMATED FINANCIAL CORP.

May 5, 2021 By: /s/ Lynne Fox
Lynne Fox
Interim President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

May 5, 2021 By: /s/ Jason Darby
Jason Darby
Interim Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1

AMALGAMATED FINANCIAL CORP.

ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN

SECTION 1: Establishment & Purpose.

1.1    Establishment of Plan. Amalgamated Financial Corp. (the “Company”), upon approval by the Committee, hereby adopts and restates
this Amalgamated Financial Corp. Annual Incentive Plan, effective March 1, 2021 (the “Effective Date”).

1.2    History. The Plan was originally established by Amalgamated Bank (the “Bank”) effective January 1, 2019 under the name
Amalgamated Bank Annual Incentive Plan, and is moving to the Company in connection with the reorganization of the Bank into a bank
holding company structure wherein the Bank is becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

1.3    Purpose of Plan. The purpose of this Plan is to accomplish the following objectives:

• to align Participants with the Company and its Subsidiaries’ strategic plans and critical performance goals,

• to motivate and reward the achievement of performance goals,

• to provide competitive total compensation opportunities,

• to enable the Company and its Subsidiaries to attract, motivate and retain top talent,

• to increase engagement and commitment to the Company and its Subsidiaries, and

• to ensure incentives are appropriately risk-balanced.

Annual Bonuses under this Plan are payable in cash or other property, but not the equity securities of the Company or its Subsidiaries.

1.4    Compliance with Applicable Laws. The Plan is subject to any applicable provisions of the New York Banking Law or the regulations
of the New York State Banking Board, and any other applicable law or regulation.

SECTION 2: Definitions.

The following capitalized words when used in this Plan have the following meanings unless a different meaning plainly is required by the
context:

2.1    “Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

2.2    “Annual Bonus” means an incentive payment, in cash unless otherwise determined by the Committee, due to a Participant upon the
achievement of certain Performance Measures as provided in this Plan.

2.3    “Bank” means Amalgamated Bank, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and a New York state-chartered bank and trust
company.
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2.4    “Base Salary” means a Participant’s annualized base salary as of the last day of the applicable Performance Period or, if earlier, the date
of promotion, role change, or termination of employment if the Annual Bonus is being prorated due to a promotion or role change, or a
payment is made on account of death, Disability or Retirement.

2.5    “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

2.6    “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and all regulations and formal guidance issued thereunder, as amended
from time to time, or any successor legislation thereto.

2.7    “Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board, or such other committee as shall be appointed by the Board as
provided in Section 3.1 to administer the Plan. The full Board may choose to retain authority to act as the “Committee” with respect to
certain awards made under the Plan or with respect to certain powers, in which case references herein to the Committee shall be deemed to
refer to the full Board.

2.8    “Company” means Amalgamated Financial Corp., a Delaware public benefit corporation.

2.9    “Continuous Service” means the absence of any interruption or termination of service as an Employee or Contractor. Continuous
Service shall not be considered interrupted in the case of: (i) sick leave; (ii) military leave; (iii) any other leave of absence approved by the
Committee, provided that in each case such leave is for a period of not more than ninety (90) days, unless reemployment upon the expiration
of such leave is guaranteed by contract or statute, or unless provided otherwise pursuant to a policy adopted by the Company or a Subsidiary
from time to time; or (iv) transfers between locations of the Company or any Subsidiary or between the Company and its Subsidiaries, or
their respective successors. Changes in status between service as an Employee and a Contractor will not constitute an interruption of
Continuous Service.

2.10    “Contractor” means an individual or entity providing services to the Company or a Subsidiary (not as an Employee) as described in
Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1(f)(1) and which for any taxable year accounts for gross income from the performance of services under the cash
receipts and disbursements method of accounting.

2.11    “Director” means a member of the Board.

2.12    “Disability” or “Disabled”, except as otherwise approved by the Committee, shall have the meaning set forth in the Participant’s
employment agreement with the Company or one of its Subsidiaries; or if no such definition exists at the time in question, means a condition
under which a Participant (i) is unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or
mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than twelve (12)
months; or (ii) is, by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be
expected to last for a continuous period of not less than twelve (12) months, receiving income replacement benefits for a period of not less
than three (3) months under an accident or health plan covering employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries. Disability will be determined
by the Committee on the basis of such medical evidence as the Committee deems warranted under the circumstances.

2.13    “Employee” means any person employed by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

2.14    “Maximum Annual Bonus” means a dollar amount or a percentage of Base Salary, as determined by the Committee (or its delegate)
for each Performance Period, which represents the payment that the Participant will earn if the maximum level of the Performance Measures
is achieved.
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2.15    “Non-Employee Director” means a Director who both (i) is not a current Employee or Officer and does not receive compensation
(either directly or indirectly) from the Company or one of its Subsidiaries for services rendered as a consultant or in any capacity other than
as a Director, and (ii) is otherwise considered a “non-employee director” for purposes of Rule 16b-3.

2.16    “Officer” means a person who is an officer of the Company or one or more of its Subsidiaries within the meaning of Section 16 of the
Exchange Act.

2.17    “Participant” means any Employee who is determined by the Company to be expected to work at least twenty (20) hours per week for
the Company and its Subsidiaries, (ii) not covered by a collective bargaining agreement to which the Company or any Subsidiary is a party
and (iii) not participating in a sales commission plan established or maintained by the Company or any Subsidiary.

2.18    “Performance Measures” means the performance goals selected for each Participant or class of Participants with respect to each
Performance Period, the achievement of which shall determine the amount of the Participant’s Annual Bonus for the Performance Period.
The Performance Measures may include any earnings (e.g., earnings before interest and taxes; earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization; and earnings per share; each as may be defined by the Committee); financial return ratios (e.g., return on investment; return
on invested capital; return on equity; and return on assets; each as may be defined by the Committee); “Texas ratio”; expense ratio; efficiency
ratio; increase in revenue, operating or net cash flows; cash flow return on investment; total shareholder return; market share; net operating
income, operating income or net income; debt load reduction; loan and lease losses; expense management; economic value added; stock
price; book value; overhead; assets; asset quality level; charge offs; loan loss reserves; loans; deposits; nonperforming assets; growth of
loans, deposits, or assets; interest sensitivity gap levels; regulatory compliance; improvement of financial rating; achievement of balance
sheet or income statement objectives; improvements in capital structure; profitability; profit margins; budget comparisons or strategic
business objectives, consisting of one or more objectives based on meeting specific cost targets, business expansion goals and goals relating
to acquisitions or divestitures; or any other objective approved by the Committee, in its sole discretion. The Performance Measures may be
determined on a Company or Subsidiary-wide basis, with respect to one (1) or more business units, divisions, Subsidiaries, or business
segments, and in either absolute terms or relative to the performance of one (1) or more comparable companies or the performance of one or
more relevant indices. The Committee will appropriately make adjustments in the method of calculating the attainment of Performance
Measures for a Performance Period as follows: (i) to exclude restructuring and/or other nonrecurring charges; (ii) to exclude exchange rate
effects; (iii) to exclude the effects of changes to generally-accepted accounting principles; (iv) to exclude the effects of any statutory
adjustments to corporate tax rates; (v) to exclude the effects of any “extraordinary items” as determined under generally-accepted accounting
principles; (vi) to exclude the dilutive effects of acquisitions or joint ventures; (vii) to assume that any business divested by the Company or
one of its Subsidiaries achieved performance objectives at targeted levels during the balance of a Performance Period following such
divestiture; (viii) to exclude the effects of stock-based compensation and the award of bonuses under the Company or any Subsidiary’s bonus
plans; (ix) to exclude costs incurred in connection with potential acquisitions or divestitures that are required to be expensed under generally-
accepted accounting principles; (x) to exclude the goodwill and intangible asset impairment charges that are required to be recorded under
generally-accepted accounting principles; and (xi) to exclude the effect of any other unusual, non-recurring gain or loss or other extraordinary
item. In addition, the Committee retains the discretion to increase, reduce or eliminate the compensation or economic benefit due upon
attainment of Performance Measures and to define the manner of calculating the Performance Measures it selects to use for such Performance
Period.

2.19    “Performance Period” means each consecutive twelve (12) month period commencing on the first day of each fiscal year of the
Company during the term of this Plan, or a portion of such twelve
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(12) month period with respect to an Employee who becomes a Participant during such period, or such other period as determined by the
Committee. As of the Effective Date, the Company’s fiscal year is the calendar year.

2.20    “Plan” means this Amalgamated Financial Corp. Annual Incentive Plan.

2.21    “Retirement” means the Participant’s termination of employment with the Company and its Subsidiaries while in good standing at or
after age sixty-five (65) with at least five (5) years of Continuous Service.

2.22    “Rule 16b-3” means Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Act or any successor to Rule 16b-3, as in effect from time to time.

2.23    “Subsidiary” means, with respect to the Company, the Bank and (i) any other corporation of which more than fifty-percent (50%) of
the outstanding capital stock having ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of directors of such corporation (irrespective of
whether, at the time, stock of any other class or classes of such corporation will have or might have voting power by reason of the happening
of any contingency) is at the time, directly or indirectly, owned by the Company, and (ii) any partnership, limited liability company or other
entity in which the Company has a direct or indirect interest (whether in the form of voting or participation in profits or capital contribution)
of more than fifty-percent (50%). For purposes of this definition, “owned” means a person or entity, directly or indirectly, through any
contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, has or shares voting power, which includes the power to vote or to direct the
voting, with respect to such securities.

2.24    “Target Annual Bonus” means a dollar amount or a percentage of Base Salary determined by the Committee (or its delegate) for each
Performance Period, which represents the payment that the Participant will earn if the target level of the Performance Measures is achieved.

2.25    “Threshold Annual Bonus” means a dollar amount or a percentage of Base Salary, as determined by the Committee (or its delegate)
for each Performance Period, which represents the payment that the Participant will earn if the threshold level of the Performance Measures
is achieved.

SECTION 3: Administration.

3.1    Administration by Committee. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. Except to the extent that the full Board is serving as
the Committee hereunder, the Committee shall be composed solely of three (3) or more Non-Employee Directors in accordance with Rule
16b-3 and shall act only by a majority of its members then in office (provided that with respect to any Annual Bonus of a Committee
member, such member shall recuse himself or herself from any such vote).

3.2    Powers of Committee. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. The Committee shall have full power and authority, subject
to all applicable provisions of this Plan and applicable law, to:

(a)     establish, amend, suspend or waive such rules and regulations and appoint such agents as it deems necessary or advisable for
the proper administration of this Plan,

(b)     construe, interpret and administer this Plan and any instrument or agreement relating to this Plan, including correcting any
defect, supplying any omission or reconciling any inconsistency in the manner and to the extent it shall deem desirable to carry
this Plan into effect,

(c)    waive, prospectively or retroactively, any conditions that apply to any Annual Bonus,
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(d)    increase or decrease the amount of any Annual Bonus, and

(e)     generally, exercise such powers and perform such acts as the Committee deems necessary or expedient to promote the best
interests of the Company and/or one or more of its Subsidiaries and that are not in conflict with the provisions of the Plan.

3.3    Delegation to an Officer. The Committee may delegate its powers and duties under this Plan, including but not limited to designating
the Performance Measures and other terms of Annual Bonuses, and/or approving achievement of the applicable Performance Measures, to
one or more Officers or a committee of such Officers, subject to such terms, conditions and limitations as the Committee may establish in its
sole discretion; provided, however, that no such Officer shall have powers with respect to his or her own Annual Bonus.

3.4    Effect of Committee’s Decision. All determinations, interpretations and constructions made by the Committee will not be subject to
review by any person and will be final, binding and conclusive on all persons.

SECTION 4: Participation.

Any Employee who, as of the first day of a Performance Period, satisfies the eligibility requirements to become a Participant shall participate
in this Plan for that Performance period. A person who is hired by the Company or any Subsidiary, or promoted to a position in which he is
eligible to be a Participant, during a Performance Period shall participate in this Plan, but any Annual Bonus for such Performance Period
will be pro-rated.

SECTION 5: Performance Measures.

5.1    Designation of Bonus Levels, Performance Measures and Weightings. Prior to the start of or during each Performance Period, the
Committee shall:

(a)    establish a Threshold Annual Bonus, Target Annual Bonus and Maximum Annual Bonus for each Participant or class of
Participants (e.g., based on job title);

(b)    designate the corporate Performance Measures that will apply to such Performance Period; and

(c)    determine the weightings between individual and corporate Performance Measures for each Participant or class of Participants.

5.2    Designation of Individual Performance Measures. The individual Performance Measures for each Participant other than the
Company’s or the Subsidiary’s (as applicable) Chief Executive Officer and his/her direct reports shall be determined by the Chief Executive
Officer’s direct report that is above such Participant in the organizational structure of the Company or the Subsidiary (as applicable). The
Committee will have the sole authority to establish the individual Performance Measures for the Company’s and each Subsidiary’s (as
applicable) Chief Executive Officer and his/her direct reports.

5.3    Approval of Achievement of Performance Measures. Following the close of each Performance Period and prior to payment of any
amount to any Participant under this Plan, the Committee (or its delegate) must approve which of the applicable Performance Measures for
that Performance Period have been achieved and, in the case of the Company’s or a Subsidiary’s (as applicable) Chief Executive Officer and
his/her direct reports, the attainment of individual Performance Measures and the corresponding Annual Bonus amounts. Division managers
will approve the attainment of individual Performance Measures and the corresponding Annual Bonus
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amounts for all Participants other than the applicable Company’s or Subsidiary’s Chief Executive Officer and his/her direct reports. Such
approval shall be made in time to permit payments to be made as set forth in Section 6.

5.4    Individual Pool. The Committee may provide that, regardless of achievement of Performance Measures for a Performance Period, a
bonus pool shall be created that may be used, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, to reward certain high-performers. In no
event shall such pool exceed the total dollar amount that would be due based solely upon target level achievement of Individual Performance
Measures.

SECTION 6: Benefit Payments & Conditions.

6.1    Time and Form of Payments. All payments of Annual Bonuses pursuant to this Plan shall be made in lump-sum cash payments, less
applicable Federal, state, and local tax and other withholdings, not later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the third (3rd) month following the
end of the Performance Period. All payments shall be made in cash, unless otherwise approved by the Committee.

6.2    Continued Employment. Except as otherwise approved by the Committee or specifically set forth in a written employment agreement
between the Employee and the Company or one of its Subsidiaries in effect on the date of such payment, no Annual Bonus payment under
this Plan with respect to a Performance Period shall be paid or owed to a Participant who, on the date payment is made, is not employed in
good standing with the Company or one of its Subsidiaries or has delivered notice of resignation to the Company or one of its Subsidiaries;
provided, however, the following special provisions apply in cases of death, Disability or Retirement:

(a)    Death or Disability – In the event that the Participant dies or becomes permanently Disabled, the Participant shall continue to be
entitled to a pro-rated Annual Bonus based on his or her period of Continuous Service during the Performance Period, and
assuming achievement of individual Performance Measures at target if the death or Disability occurs prior to the end of the
Performance Period (or if such death or Disability occurs after the close of the Performance Period, based on actual
performance), or

(b)    Retirement – In the event the Participant Retires after the close of the Performance Period but prior to payment of the Annual
Bonus, the Participant shall be entitled to the full Annual Bonus amount based on actual performance. If the Participant Retires
prior to the last day of the Performance Period, the Committee may, but is not obligated to, approve payment of a prorated
Annual Bonus to the Participant based on his or her period of employment during the Performance Period and actual
performance.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Committee determines (at any time) that the Participant willfully engaged, during the Performance
Period in which his or her termination of Continuous Service, death or Retirement occurred, in any activity injurious to the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries, the Committee may choose to forfeit the entire Annual Bonus otherwise due with respect to such Performance Period or
may demand that the Participant repay the Company or the applicable Subsidiary any portion of the Annual Bonus already received. In all
events of termination of Continuous Service, payment (if any) of the Annual Bonus shall be made at the normal time that Annual Bonuses are
paid for a Performance Period.

6.3    Regulatory Action. Annual Bonuses will not be earned or paid, regardless of achievement of Performance Measures, (i) to the extent
that any regulatory agency issues a formal, written enforcement action, memorandum of understanding or other directive action that, or a
regulation,
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prohibits or limits the eligibility of the Participant for or pay out of the Annual Bonus to the Participant under the Plan, or (ii) if, after a
review of the Company’s or its Subsidiaries’ credit quality measures, the Committee considers it imprudent to provide or pay out the Annual
Bonus under the Plan.

6.4    Ethical Obligations. The Company and its Subsidiaries are committed to doing business in an honest and ethical manner and to
comply with all applicable laws and regulations. Participant actions are expected to comply with the policies (as applicable) established by
the Company and its Subsidiaries, including their Codes of Ethics and Insider Trading Policies. Any Annual Bonus otherwise due to a
Participant under the Plan may be reduced or eliminated upon a determination by the Committee or any governmental body or official
designated by applicable law that the Participant has violated any such laws, regulations, codes or policies.

6.5    Clawback. A Participant who is an Officer must repay any compensation previously paid or otherwise made available to the Participant
under this Plan (i) to the extent required by the Company’s Policy on Sound Executive Compensation and any other compensation clawback
or forfeiture policy (as applicable) implemented by the Company or any Subsidiary from time to time, including without limitation, any such
policy adopted to comply with the requirements of applicable law or the rules and regulations of any stock exchange applicable to the
Company, (ii) as is required by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, New York Banking Law, federal banking
law or other applicable law, (iii) to the extent that the Committee determines that the Participant has been involved in the altering, inflating,
and/or inappropriate manipulation of performance/financial results or any other infraction of recognized ethical business standards, or that the
Participant has willfully engaged in any activity injurious to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and/or (iv) in instances of regulatory or
capital issues and bad risk behavior (i.e., significant negative individual actions such as violations of risk policies). The Participant
acknowledges the rights of the Company and its Subsidiaries to make deductions from the Participant’s compensation and to engage in any
legal or equitable action or proceeding in order to enforce the provisions of this Section.

6.6    Other Restrictions. The Committee may impose other restrictions on any Annual Bonus, or any cash or property paid in connection
with an Annual Bonus, as the Committee deems advisable.

SECTION 7: Amendment and Termination.

The Committee may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or terminate this Plan at any time, except that no such amendment, alteration,
suspension, discontinuation or termination shall be made that would violate applicable law or the rules or regulations of the NASDAQ Stock
Market or any other securities rules and regulations that are applicable to the Company.

No right to receive an Annual Bonus shall accrue after the termination of this Plan. However, unless otherwise expressly provided by the
Committee, any right to receive an Annual Bonus for the Performance Period in which such termination takes effect may extend beyond the
termination of this Plan, and the authority of the Committee and its delegates to amend or otherwise administer this Plan shall extend beyond
the termination of this Plan.

SECTION 8: General Provisions.

8.1    Tax Withholding. The Company or its Subsidiaries shall be entitled to withhold and deduct from future wages of a Participant (or from
other amounts that may be due and owing to a Participant from the Company or a Subsidiary), or make other arrangements for the collection
of, all legally required amounts necessary to satisfy any and all federal, state, local and foreign withholding and employment-related tax
requirements attributable to an Annual Bonus. The Company may establish
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such rules and procedures concerning timing of any withholding election as it deems appropriate. Notwithstanding any action taken or not
taken by the Company or its Subsidiaries, the Participant shall remain solely liable for all taxes due with respect to his or her Annual Bonus.

8.2    Nontransferability. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee, no right to any Annual Bonus under this Plan, whether payable
in cash or property, shall be transferable by a Participant other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution; provided, however, that
if so determined by the Committee, a Participant may, in the manner established by the Committee, designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries to
exercise the rights of the Participant and receive any Annual Bonus upon the death of the Participant. No right to any Annual Bonus under
this Plan may be pledged, attached or otherwise encumbered, and any purported pledge, attachment or encumbrance thereof shall be void and
unenforceable against the Company and its Subsidiaries.

8.3    Electronic Delivery. Any reference herein to a “written” agreement or document will include any agreement or document delivered
electronically, or posted on the Company’s or the applicable Subsidiary’s intranet (or other shared electronic medium controlled by the
Company or the applicable Subsidiary to which the Participant has access).

8.4    Deferrals. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Committee, in its sole discretion, (i) may determine that any cash or in-kind
payment of any Annual Bonus may be deferred, (ii) may establish programs and procedures for deferral elections to be made by Participants
and (iii) may implement such other terms and conditions that are consistent with the provisions of the Plan and in accordance with applicable
law. Deferrals by Participants will be made in accordance with Section 409A of the Code. Consistent with Section 409A of the Code, the
Committee may provide for distributions while a Participant is still an employee or otherwise providing services to the Company or its
Subsidiaries.

8.5    Compliance with Section 409A of the Code. This Plan will be interpreted to the greatest extent possible in a manner that makes this
Plan and the Annual Bonuses paid hereunder exempt from Section 409A of the Code, and, to the extent not so exempt, compliant with
Section 409A of the Code. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan, if a Participant holding an Annual Bonus that constitutes
“deferred compensation” under Section 409A of the Code is a “specified employee” for purposes of Section 409A of the Code, no
distribution or payment of any amount that is due because of a “separation from service” (as defined in Section 409A of the Code without
regard to alternative definitions thereunder) will be issued or paid before the date that is six months following the date of such Participant’s
“separation from service” (as defined in Section 409A of the Code without regard to alternative definitions thereunder) or, if earlier, the date
of the Participant’s death, unless such distribution or payment can be made in a manner that complies with Section 409A of the Code, and
any amounts so deferred will be paid in a lump sum on the day after such six month period elapses.

8.6    Headings. Headings are given to the Sections and subsections of this Plan solely as a convenience to facilitate reference. Such headings
shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to the construction or interpretation of this Plan or any provision thereof.

8.7    Successors. All obligations of the Company and its Subsidiaries under this Plan shall be binding on any successor to the Company,
whether the existence of such successor is the result of a direct or indirect merger, consolidation, purchase of all or substantially all of the
business and/or assets of the Company or otherwise.

8.8    No Employment or Other Service Rights. Nothing in this Plan or any instrument executed under the Plan or in connection with any
Annual Bonus will confer upon any Participant any right to continue to serve the Company or a Subsidiary in the capacity in effect at the
commencement of
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participation or any Performance Period or will affect the right of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to terminate the employment of an
Employee with or without notice and with or without cause. Any Participant’s employment with the Company and any of its Subsidiaries
shall continue to be at-will.

8.9    No Trust or Fund Created. This Plan, and any action taken pursuant to the provisions thereof, shall not create or be construed to
create a trust or separate fund of any kind, or a pledge or a fiduciary relationship between the Company or any Subsidiary and a Participant or
any other person or to require the Company or any Subsidiary to segregate any funds for a Participant’s benefit. To the extent that any person
acquires a right to receive payments from the Company or any Subsidiary pursuant to this Plan, such right shall be no greater than the right of
any unsecured general creditor of the Company or of any Subsidiary. The Committee shall determine, in its sole discretion, whether the
Company or one or more of its Subsidiaries shall be responsible for making a payment hereunder.

8.10    Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of this Plan or any Annual Bonus payable under this Plan shall be determined in
accordance with the laws of the state in which the Participant is employed.

8.11    Severability. Each provision in this Plan is severable, and if any provision is held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,
legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not, in any way, be affected or impaired thereby.

This Plan is being executed, on behalf of the Company, by the undersigned duly-authorized officer of the Company.

Amalgamated Financial Corp.

By: /s/ Lynne P. Fox
    Lynne P. Fox, Interim President and Chief Executive Officer
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Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

I, Lynne Fox, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Amalgamated Financial Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 5, 2021

/s/ Lynne Fox
Lynne Fox, Interim President and Chief Executive Officer
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Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

I, Jason Darby, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Amalgamated Financial Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 5, 2021

/s/ Jason Darby
Jason Darby, Interim Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Amalgamated Financial Corp. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2021 as
filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned officers each certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to his knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Lynne Fox
Lynne Fox
Interim President and Chief Executive Officer
May 5, 2021

/s/ Jason Darby
Jason Darby
Interim Chief Financial Officer
May 5, 2021


